
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2015 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

- INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Public recognition of four employees for
December's "Spotlight on Employees" Program,
as follows: Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney,
Celena Cates, and Todd Whitney.  (Michael
O'Driscoll)

Recognized

 

B.   Presentation from Erin Collins and Associates
staff updating member county boards of
supervisors regarding the Arizona Local
Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) Wellness
Program and changes in the coming program
year.

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action for the public
sale of a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka
Miami Street) as shown on Official Map No. 25,
Gila County Records, and to accept a bid in
the amount of $209 from John and Barbara
Stemm for that portion of S. Marion Canyon
(aka Miami Street) adjacent to parcel
206-03-175.  (Steve Sanders)

Sold

 



4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Ordinance No. 2015-04, an amendment to the
Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance,
to allow for the establishment of accessory
dwelling units in all single family residential
districts and to delete references to guest
houses.  (Bob Gould)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the
results of the Miami Unified School District No.
40 election that was held on November 3,
2015, in Gila County, Arizona and declare the
results official.  (Eric Mariscal)

Declared
Official

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept an
Application and Citizens' Petition to begin the
process to abandon a portion of Blake, Coplen,
and Hobart Streets.  (Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a
purchase requisition to Pioneer Title Agency in
the amount of $44,956.83 for the purchase of
three parcels of land in Tonto Basin to be used
for right-of-way for the Tonto Creek Bridge,
and authorize the Chairman’s signature on all
documents needed to complete the purchase.  
(Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action regarding
appointments or reappointments of members
of the Board of Supervisors to the following
boards, committees and organizations for
calendar year 2016:  1) Correctional Officers
Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office
Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed
Officers; 2) Correctional Officers Retirement

Reappointed



Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office
Dispatchers; 3) Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System Local Board; 4) Gila County
Board of Health; 5) Gila County Local
Emergency Planning Committee; 6) Central
Arizona Governments Regional Council; 7)
County Supervisors Association Legislative
Policy Committee; 8) Eastern Arizona Counties
Organization; 9) San Carlos Apache Tribe
Partnership Steering Committee; 10) Coalition
of Arizona/New Mexico Counties; 11) Gila
Community College Allied Health Care
Advisory Committee; and 12) Gila Community
College Industry and Mining Advisory Board.  
(Don McDaniel)

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
#ADHS16-098369) with the Arizona
Department of Health Services to integrate
Phase 3 grants (Teen Pregnancy Prevention,
Family Planning, and Maternal and Child
Health Services) into one contract entitled
"Healthy People Healthy Communities."

Approved

 

B.   Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement
between Arizona Community Action
Association and Gila County Community
Services to receive a one-time lump sum of
$7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila
County Community Services in the operation
of the CAP60 case management software.

Approved



 

C.   Approval of the reappointment of Mike Hanich
and Peter Oddonetto to the Gila County
Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board
for another 4-year term of office beginning
January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2019.

Approved

 

D.   Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe Regional
Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Acknowledgment of October 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Approval of the November 17, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of November 3, 2015,
November 10, 2015, November 17, 2015, and
November 24, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of November 2, 2015,
through November 6, 2015; November 9,
2015, through November 13, 2015;
and, November 16, 2015, through November

Acknowledged



20, 2015.
 

K. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
November 24, 2015, and December 1, 2015.

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

 

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3456     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr., Human

Resources Department
Department: Human Resources Department

Information
Request/Subject
December 2015 "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the
following qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer
service and initiative.

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize four
employees for December 2015 through the County's "Spotlight on Employees"
Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of four employees for December's "Spotlight on Employees"
Program, as follows: Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney, Celena Cates, and Todd
Whitney.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Nomination Form: D. Williams
Nomination Form: B. Cheney
Nomination Form: C. Cates
Nomination Form: T. Whitney



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



1

Raymond, Erica

From: Beck, Josh
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2015 9:42 PM
To: McPherson, Shelley; Raymond, Erica
Cc: O'Driscoll, Michael
Subject: Another Employee(s) Spotlight Award 
Attachments: HIA final_comp[1].pdf; HIA Team SPOTLIGHT Nomination form 11-14.pdf

Michael and I would also like to submit this request for an Employee Spotlight Award for 
the team of Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney, and Celena Cates.  
 
Their work to promote, and educate, the public on the many health and 
financial benefits that would be associated with the construction of the Pinal 
Creek Trail took great teamwork and an abundance of initiative.  Most 
importantly the quality of the end product, The Pinal Creek Trail Health 
Impact Assessment Recommendation Paper (and the promotional material that 
went with it) earned the team first place for the Statewide 2015 Health 
Education and Media Marketing Yearly (HEMMY) award from the Arizona Public 
Health Association. 
The Gila County Department of Health and Emergency Management had the 
opportunity to conduct research for a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) in the 
Globe community. An HIA is meant to measure the health outcomes, both 
positive and negative, of a proposed project in a community. The Pinal Creek 
Trail Health Impact Assessment team hosted a community walking event at the 
site of Globe's first Disc Golf course. The event was designed to educate the 
public on the Pinal Creek Trail efforts and the health benefits of getting the 
recommended amounts of physical activity per week. Nearly 200 people of all 
ages visited the park, some participating in the walking event and others 
playing disc golf. An onsite bounce house provided entertainment for children 
under the age of ten, while the older children accompanied the adults in 
walking the trails and course. The education booth provided materials about 
the benefits of physical activity and the chronic disease rates of Gila County 
residents. A storyboard with Gila County specific health statistics, information 
about the Pinal Creek Trail Project and a summary of the Health Impact 
Assessment process were displayed for community members. Volunteers from 
Gila County Department of Health answered questions, handed out prizes and 
registered participants for the event.  The project has received praise from the 
State Health Department, Globe City Manager Brent Billingsley, and the Project 
Champion Supervisor Pastor. 
 
For their fortitude in completing this project, and in recognition of their HEMMY award, 
Michael and I support their nomination for this award. 
 
Joshua	Beck	MS	MPH,	President	
Arizona	Public	Health	Association	
Manager	
Offices:		Emergency	Management	



2

Public	Health	Emergency	Preparedness		
Epidemiology	&	Communicable	Disease	
Nutrition	and	Physical	Activity	
Gila	County	Division	of	Health	and	Emergency	Services	
5515	South	Apache	Avenue,	Suite	400	
Globe,	AZ	85501	
Office:	928‐402‐8805		Fax:	928‐425‐7714	
Cell:	928‐200‐6796	
jbeck@gilacountyaz.gov	
		
“The character of a business person is not defined by their bank account, but defined by what they are willing to do for their people.”	
—Marcus Lemonis	



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



1

Raymond, Erica

From: Beck, Josh
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2015 9:42 PM
To: McPherson, Shelley; Raymond, Erica
Cc: O'Driscoll, Michael
Subject: Another Employee(s) Spotlight Award 
Attachments: HIA final_comp[1].pdf; HIA Team SPOTLIGHT Nomination form 11-14.pdf

Michael and I would also like to submit this request for an Employee Spotlight Award for 
the team of Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney, and Celena Cates.  
 
Their work to promote, and educate, the public on the many health and 
financial benefits that would be associated with the construction of the Pinal 
Creek Trail took great teamwork and an abundance of initiative.  Most 
importantly the quality of the end product, The Pinal Creek Trail Health 
Impact Assessment Recommendation Paper (and the promotional material that 
went with it) earned the team first place for the Statewide 2015 Health 
Education and Media Marketing Yearly (HEMMY) award from the Arizona Public 
Health Association. 
The Gila County Department of Health and Emergency Management had the 
opportunity to conduct research for a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) in the 
Globe community. An HIA is meant to measure the health outcomes, both 
positive and negative, of a proposed project in a community. The Pinal Creek 
Trail Health Impact Assessment team hosted a community walking event at the 
site of Globe's first Disc Golf course. The event was designed to educate the 
public on the Pinal Creek Trail efforts and the health benefits of getting the 
recommended amounts of physical activity per week. Nearly 200 people of all 
ages visited the park, some participating in the walking event and others 
playing disc golf. An onsite bounce house provided entertainment for children 
under the age of ten, while the older children accompanied the adults in 
walking the trails and course. The education booth provided materials about 
the benefits of physical activity and the chronic disease rates of Gila County 
residents. A storyboard with Gila County specific health statistics, information 
about the Pinal Creek Trail Project and a summary of the Health Impact 
Assessment process were displayed for community members. Volunteers from 
Gila County Department of Health answered questions, handed out prizes and 
registered participants for the event.  The project has received praise from the 
State Health Department, Globe City Manager Brent Billingsley, and the Project 
Champion Supervisor Pastor. 
 
For their fortitude in completing this project, and in recognition of their HEMMY award, 
Michael and I support their nomination for this award. 
 
Joshua	Beck	MS	MPH,	President	
Arizona	Public	Health	Association	
Manager	
Offices:		Emergency	Management	



2

Public	Health	Emergency	Preparedness		
Epidemiology	&	Communicable	Disease	
Nutrition	and	Physical	Activity	
Gila	County	Division	of	Health	and	Emergency	Services	
5515	South	Apache	Avenue,	Suite	400	
Globe,	AZ	85501	
Office:	928‐402‐8805		Fax:	928‐425‐7714	
Cell:	928‐200‐6796	
jbeck@gilacountyaz.gov	
		
“The character of a business person is not defined by their bank account, but defined by what they are willing to do for their people.”	
—Marcus Lemonis	



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



1

Raymond, Erica

From: Beck, Josh
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2015 9:42 PM
To: McPherson, Shelley; Raymond, Erica
Cc: O'Driscoll, Michael
Subject: Another Employee(s) Spotlight Award 
Attachments: HIA final_comp[1].pdf; HIA Team SPOTLIGHT Nomination form 11-14.pdf

Michael and I would also like to submit this request for an Employee Spotlight Award for 
the team of Dezirae Williams, Bethany Cheney, and Celena Cates.  
 
Their work to promote, and educate, the public on the many health and 
financial benefits that would be associated with the construction of the Pinal 
Creek Trail took great teamwork and an abundance of initiative.  Most 
importantly the quality of the end product, The Pinal Creek Trail Health 
Impact Assessment Recommendation Paper (and the promotional material that 
went with it) earned the team first place for the Statewide 2015 Health 
Education and Media Marketing Yearly (HEMMY) award from the Arizona Public 
Health Association. 
The Gila County Department of Health and Emergency Management had the 
opportunity to conduct research for a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) in the 
Globe community. An HIA is meant to measure the health outcomes, both 
positive and negative, of a proposed project in a community. The Pinal Creek 
Trail Health Impact Assessment team hosted a community walking event at the 
site of Globe's first Disc Golf course. The event was designed to educate the 
public on the Pinal Creek Trail efforts and the health benefits of getting the 
recommended amounts of physical activity per week. Nearly 200 people of all 
ages visited the park, some participating in the walking event and others 
playing disc golf. An onsite bounce house provided entertainment for children 
under the age of ten, while the older children accompanied the adults in 
walking the trails and course. The education booth provided materials about 
the benefits of physical activity and the chronic disease rates of Gila County 
residents. A storyboard with Gila County specific health statistics, information 
about the Pinal Creek Trail Project and a summary of the Health Impact 
Assessment process were displayed for community members. Volunteers from 
Gila County Department of Health answered questions, handed out prizes and 
registered participants for the event.  The project has received praise from the 
State Health Department, Globe City Manager Brent Billingsley, and the Project 
Champion Supervisor Pastor. 
 
For their fortitude in completing this project, and in recognition of their HEMMY award, 
Michael and I support their nomination for this award. 
 
Joshua	Beck	MS	MPH,	President	
Arizona	Public	Health	Association	
Manager	
Offices:		Emergency	Management	



2

Public	Health	Emergency	Preparedness		
Epidemiology	&	Communicable	Disease	
Nutrition	and	Physical	Activity	
Gila	County	Division	of	Health	and	Emergency	Services	
5515	South	Apache	Avenue,	Suite	400	
Globe,	AZ	85501	
Office:	928‐402‐8805		Fax:	928‐425‐7714	
Cell:	928‐200‐6796	
jbeck@gilacountyaz.gov	
		
“The character of a business person is not defined by their bank account, but defined by what they are willing to do for their people.”	
—Marcus Lemonis	



         
                                         Employee Name 

 SPOTLIGHT
on Employees 

   
 
 

Team Work 
Quality 

Morale Building 
Integrity 

Customer Service 
Initiative 
 

Example:                 

                  

                  

                   

                   

                   

 

                

Supervisor                            Date 



1

Raymond, Erica

From: Beck, Josh
Sent: Monday, October 26, 2015 9:05 PM
To: Raymond, Erica; McPherson, Shelley
Cc: O'Driscoll, Michael
Subject: Employee Spotlight Award
Attachments: Todd Whitney SPOTLIGHT Nomination form 11-14.pdf

Good evening, 
 
On Mr. O’Driscoll and my behalf, we would like to submit Todd Whitney for an Employee 
Spotlight Award: 
 
We recently received a letter of praise for Todd Whitney’s dedication to 
customer service and initiative in solving a major communications issue in 
Northern Gila County. The Town of Payson and the Rim Country Broadband 
Team welcomed Todd as an Emergency Management team member. They 
praised his experience as the Gila County Emergency Management 
Communications Specialist and his can do attitude. Within the first two weeks, 
Todd solved a major problem with Banner Payson Medical Center commutations 
during outages. Banner is a paperless origination and sends all CT scans 
toChicago for review by telemedicine. During the latest 13-hour broadband 
outage in the Rim Country, three patients from Banner Payson Medical Center 
incurred the cost of a flight to Phoenix for scans at the cost of $15,000 each. 
Todd’s fast response and initiative have led to the addition of satellite 
internetcapabilities to send any future CT scans during outages.  This is just 
one of the many ideas and solutions that he has brought to the table within a 
short two weeks.   Todd’s passion for customer service resulted in a call 
received from Mr. Lance Porter, CEO of Banner Payson Medical Center, giving 
thanks to Mr. Whitney as a true professional and a pleasure to work with. 
 
Given that this is only one of a many major accomplishments that Todd has completed for Gila County and 
received praise, we both wholeheartedly support his nomination. 
 
Joshua Beck MS MPH, President 
Arizona Public Health Association 
Manager 
Offices:  Emergency Management 
    Public Health Emergency Preparedness  
    Epidemiology & Communicable Disease 
    Nutrition and Physical Activity 
Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 
5515 South Apache Avenue, Suite 400 
Globe, AZ 85501 
Office: 928‐402‐8805  Fax: 928‐425‐7714 
Cell: 928‐200‐6796 
jbeck@gilacountyaz.gov 
  
“The character of a business person is not defined by their bank account, but defined by what they are willing to do for their people.” 
—Marcus Lemonis 



   

ARF-3480     Presentation Agenda Item      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust Wellness Update
Presentation

Background Information
Gila County joined Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust
(AZLGEBT) on July 1, 1999.  AZLGEBT provides medical, prescription, dental,
vision, disability, life insurance and a wellness program for eligible Gila County
employees and dependents.  AZLGEBT works to strike a balance between costs
and benefits, encourage healthy behaviors rather than simply paying claims,
and innovate in financing, technology, programming, and explore opportunities
to assure the success of the trust. 

Staff with Erin Collins and Associates is making this presentation to share
information regarding the Wellness Program, highlighting a changing focus for
the coming Wellness Program year.  

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation from Erin Collins and Associates staff updating member county
boards of supervisors regarding the Arizona Local Employee Benefit Trust
(AZLGEBT) Wellness Program and changes in the coming program year.

Attachments
AZLGEBT 12-1-15





NOTE: 

To change the  

image on this 

slide, select 

the picture and 

delete it. Then 

click the 

Pictures icon in 

the placeholder 

to insert your 

own image. 

January 2016 



What’s Happening (Overview)? 

• New Health Risk Assessment (HRA) and scoring system… 

• Paired with: 

• Health Coaches 

• Goals set and progress measured over time 

• FitBits 

• Focus on evidence based measurement 

• Biometrics > Self Reporting 

• More direct link back to claims data 



Health Risk Assessment 

• Results are easy to interpret 
through a letter grade system 

• Provides objective levels of 
health measure 

• Compares biometric data to  
self-reported data 

• Shortened questionnaire 

• Online access 

• Participate in the HRA to earn a 
$10 per pay period premium 
waiver 



Addition of Nurse Consultations  

• Statistics continue to show that our population is 

• Overweight, 

• Obese, 

• Sedentary,  

• Lacking healthy nutrition,  

• And highly medicated. 

• AZLGEBT’s HRA data supports this, but the wellness program provides no long term mechanism for 
behavior change 

• Moderate and High risk employees, as defined by the individual’s HRA results, will meet quarterly with a 
nurse to set and work toward S.M.A.R.T. health goals  

• Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-based 

• Nurse consultations will:  

• Provide guidance and supervision for necessary health modifications 

• Deliver resources for achieving long term health goals  

• Address the individual’s health risks  

 



Addition of FitBit Activity Trackers 

What is a FitBit? 

The FitBit is a tool to help motivate movement through 
daily tracking of your habits! When it comes to reaching 
goals, steps are just the beginning. Fitbit tracks every part 
of your day—daily movement, exercise, food, weight and 
sleep—to help you find your fit, stay motivated, and see 
how small steps make a big impact. 



Who can get one and how?  

• ALL employees who participate in the HRA can earn a FitBit 

• Moderate and High risk employees will need to complete their HRA, 
attend an initial nurse consult and set two (2) S.M.A.R.T. health goals 
with the nurse 

• Low risk members will need to complete their HRA and an online 
wellness survey 

• Once employees complete the steps listed above, they will receive a 
unique code used to order their FitBit tracking device! 

• AZLGEBT will pay 100% of the discounted cost of                                      
the FitBit Zip!  

• Employees can purchase a higher model by paying the difference  

 



Title and Content Layout with SmartArt 

Receive a Unique Ordering Code, get a FitBit and start moving! 

Low Risk Members – Complete the Online Wellness Survey 

Moderate & High Risk Members – Complete the Initial Nurse Consult and set 2 Health Goals 

Receive a Biometric Health Grade from Healthwaves 

Complete the HRA to earn a $10 per pay period Premium Waiver 



Why FitBits? 

• Fitness is not just about gym time, it’s all the time. 

• FitBit trackers will replace AZLGEBT’s short term wellness challenges 
and focus instead on motivating employees to move every day  

• Somewhere between first tries and finish lines, pillow fights and 
pushing limits, is where we find wellbeing 

• How we spend our day determines when we reach our goals  

• Seeing our progress against the group and our peers will help 
employees see what’s really possible 

• Get motivated and get moving! 



What’s About the Other Wellness Programs? 

• Sweet Savings Diabetes Program? 

• Unchanged 

• Screenings 

• Various forms of cancer 

• Cardiac 

• Organ, etc. 

• No change! 



NOTE: 

To change the  

image on this 

slide, select 

the picture and 

delete it. Then 

click the 

Pictures icon in 

the placeholder 

to insert your 

own image. 



   
ARF-3394     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst., Public

Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Public Sale for a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) as shown
on Official Map No. 25, Gila County Records, Gila County, AZ.

Background Information
On April 7, 2015, during a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,
the Board gave the approval to begin the process to dispose of an
unnecessary public roadway being a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka
Miami Street). Staff began the necessary notifications and public postings
of the Board’s decision.

There is one parcel of land that abuts the portion of S. Marion Canyon
(aka Miami Street) being abandoned. The adjacent landowners have been
contacted and given the option to exercise preference rights before the
proposed date of the sale or to appear at the public sale and submit a bid
for that portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) adjacent to their
property.

John and Barbara Stemm have submitted a bid in the amount of $209 for
the portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) adjacent to their
property. This bid meets the minimum requirements established by the
current Gila County policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila
County.

No other bids have been received; however, bids may be accepted at the
public sale.

Evaluation
S. Marian Canyon (aka Miami Street) was created when Miami Map No. 3,



S. Marian Canyon (aka Miami Street) was created when Miami Map No. 3,
Official Map No. 29, Gila County Records, was recorded in 1910. This
portion of the road serves no purpose and does not provide access to
anyone in the area.

The County will benefit from the sale of the road by having the property go
on the County’s tax rolls.

Conclusion
Abandonment of this road will not deny anyone access to private property
in the area.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors accept the bid from John and Barbara Stemm for the subject
property.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of S.
Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) as shown on Official Map No. 25, Gila
County Records, and to accept a bid in the amount of $209 from John
and Barbara Stemm for that portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami
Street) adjacent to parcel 206-03-175.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Public Notice of Sale Acknowledgment 9-22-15
Stemm Area Map
Notice of Sale











   
ARF-3474     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director 
Submitted By: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director, Community Development Division
Department: Community Development Division Division: Planning and Zoning

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt as amended Zoning Ordinance No. 2015-04, an amendment to the Gila County Zoning Ordinance to allow
Accessory Dwelling Units in the Unincorporated areas of Gila County.

Background Information
During the September 15, 2015, Board of Supervisors meeting, Zoning Ordinance No. 2015-04 which pertains to
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) was tabled and sent back to the Planning & Zoning Commission for further
consideration. Concern was raised by the Board's attorney regarding the potential liability of allowing park models to
be used as a permanent dwelling unit.

Evaluation
The current Zoning Ordinance allows guest houses, but there are several restrictions such as no kitchen facilities
and they have to be non-rental units.  This is almost impossible to enforce and not necessary as it doesn't impact
the residential character of a neighborhood.  We have removed these restrictions while emphasizing the need to
maintain the single family residential character; it helps with affordable housing, and allows elderly citizens to have
a home close to their children when needed.

Conclusion
Community Development Division staff believe that amending the Zoning Ordinance to include language which
addresses ADUs would be beneficial to the residents of Gila County.  It is believed that any adverse issue that may
arise regarding an ADU can be adequately managed.

Recommendation
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public meeting regarding this application on October 27, 2015, and
unanimously recommends approval of the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to the Board of Supervisors.  Any
reference to the use of park models as a permanent dwelling unit has been deleted from this ordinance. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-04, an amendment to the Gila County Planning and
Zoning Ordinance, to allow for the establishment of accessory dwelling units in all single family residential districts
and to delete references to guest houses.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments

Final Ordinance 2015-04
Red-lined Ordinance 2015-04
Staff Report



 

 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2 0 1 5 - 0 4  
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND S E C T I O N  1 0 2  B Y  A D D I N G  A  
D E F I N I T I O N  F O R  A N  A C C E S S O R Y  D W E L L I N G  U N I T  
( A D U ) AND A D D I N G  S E C T I O N  1 0 4 . B . 2  F O R  R E G U L A T I N G  
A C C E S S O R Y  D W E L L I N G  U N I T S  A N D  D E L E T I N G  
S E C T I O N S  1 0 4 . C . 1  A N D  1 0 4 . 2 . A . 4 . a  A N D  A M E N D I N G  
S E C T I O N S  1 0 4 . 2 . F . 3 . a  A N D  1 0 4 . 2 . G . 3 . a  F O R  G U E S T  
Q U A R T E R S .   

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, 
Arizona, and upon recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Board of 
Supervisors may amend, supplement or change the regulations set forth in the zoning 
code; and 

 
WHEREAS, revisions have been made to the Zoning Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila 
County, Arizona, to include Sections  102, and 104; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 20, 2015 a public hearing was held by the Planning and  Zoning Commission 
to review and obtain public comment regarding the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance for 
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, as required by the Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended that the Board of Supervisors 
adopt these amendments to allow for Accessory Dwelling Units; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has properly noticed this Zoning Ordinance for 
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, and conducted a public hearing in compliance with 
A.R.S. §11-251-05(C) and 11-813. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopts as 
amended the Zoning Ordinance of Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, which will go 
into effect 30 days after Board of Supervisors’ approval: 

 
SECTION 102 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU):  An ADU is a small self-contained dwelling, typically with its own 
entrance, cooking, and bathing facilities, that shares the site of a larger, single-unit dwelling. ADUs may 



be attached, as in the case of a basement apartment, or detached, as in the case of a backyard cottage. An 
ADU is not a separate property; it has the same owner as the primary dwelling. 
 
SECTION 104  
ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONES (USE AND DENSITY DISTRICTS)  
 
In conformity with the intent and purpose of this Zoning Ordinance, “Use” and “Density” districts are 
hereby adopted in order to classify, regulate, restrict and separate uses of land and structures, lot 
dimensions and areas, yard widths and depths, percent of lot coverage and open spaces, lot area required 
for dwelling units and other structures, spacing of buildings, and the height and bulk of structures. The 
following general regulations apply to all Single Family Districts except where noted otherwise:  
 

A. INTENT AND PURPOSE  
 

To promote the development of areas primarily of single family dwellings, intending that all other 
uses be installed, operated and maintained in a manner so as to either complement, or at least be 
of a minimum disruption to such single family uses. Any use not in accordance with the Intent 
and Purpose, District Stipulations and Provisions, and Permitted Uses as set forth in this section 
shall be deemed a nuisance.  

 
B. DISTRICT STIPULATIONS AND PROVISIONS  

 
2. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS: 

                                                            
a. There are three (3) different categories or types of Accessory Dwelling Units: 

 
i. Attached Unit 
ii. Detached Unit 
iii. Interior Unit 
 

b. Regulations for accessory dwelling units 
 

i. In all single family residential districts, one accessory dwelling unit shall be 
permitted by right on an individual lot. 

ii. The accessory dwelling unit shall not occupy more floor area than the primary 
dwelling unit 

iii. Minimum lot area for an ADU shall be 5,000 square feet. 
iv. The primary use must already be established prior to permitting an accessory 

dwelling unit. 
v. No more than one entrance per story shall be located in each building façade that 

faces a street; 
vi. The property owner must reside in the primary or accessory unit. 
vii. The Planning & Zoning Commission may grant, through a conditional use permit, 

approval to locate an accessory dwelling unit that does not meet one or more of the 
conditions of this section. The applicant must demonstrate that the application 
complies with the general purposes and intent of this chapter with no adverse effects 
to the character of the single family residential district. 

viii. A deck or balcony is permitted as a portion of any story of the accessory building; 
provided: 

a) The deck or balcony is oriented so as to not face a principal building on an 
adjoining property in a single family residential district. 



ix. The accessory building shall conform to all applicable setback and lot occupancy 
regulations; 

x. The closest façade of a detached accessory building shall be separated from the 
closest façade of the principal building by a distance of ten (10) feet minimum 
unless attached to the principal building; 

 
c. Development Standards 

 
i. Height. The maximum height for a detached ADU is 30 feet. 
ii. Building coverage. The building coverage shall not exceed the maximum percentage 

allowed in the zoning district. 
iii. Parking. Adequate must be provided that is off-street.  
iv. Must have adequate facilities for the discharge of wastewater. 

 
d. Design Standards 

 
i. Location of entrances. Only one main entrance may be located on the street-facing 

facade of the house, unless the house contained additional entrances before the ADU 
was created. An exception to this regulation is an entrance that does not have access 
from the ground, such as an entrance from a balcony or deck. 

ii. Exterior design details. Exterior finish materials, roof pitch, trim, eaves, window 
orientation and dimension must be the same or visually match those of the primary 
dwelling unit. 

 
104. C. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO A USE PERMIT  
 

1. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner. 
b. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as guest rooms. 
c. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days. 
d. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to their rooms with no separate 

entrance allowed. 
e. All parking must be accommodated on the site. 
f. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common dining area. 
g. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be complied with, and all 

required permits must be obtained and remain valid so long as the use is in operation. 
h. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the expiration date of the permit, 

the Director, or his designate, shall review the establishment for compliance with the terms of the 
permit.  Full compliance shall result in an automatic two year extension; violations shall result in 
suspension or revocation. 

 
2. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and equipment yards) 

subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. Water Storage Tanks 
 

i. Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet. 
ii. Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown and landscaped to minimize 

adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 
iii. All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and screened or painted to match tanks. 

 



b. Water Wells

i. Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials finished in neutral “earth
tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties.

1. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed.

c. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities

1. Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral “earth tones” and landscaped
to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties.

2. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed.

3. Home Occupations.

Section 104.2.A.4.a 

4. Uses Permitted Subject to a Use Permit:

a. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions:
i. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner.

ii. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as guest rooms.
iii. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days.
iv. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to their rooms with no

separate entrance allowed.
v. All parking must be accommodated on the site.

vi. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common dining area.
vii. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be complied with, and

all required permits must be obtained and remain valid so long as the use is in operation.
viii. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the expiration date of the

permit, the Director, or his designate, shall review the establishment for compliance with the
terms of the permit.  Full compliance shall result in an automatic two year extension;
violations shall result in suspension or revocation.

b. The keeping of individual animals not classified as household pets or domestic farm-type animals.
c. Non-commercial kennels.
d. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and equipment yards)

subject to the following conditions:
i. Water Storage Tanks:

a) Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet.
b) Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown and landscaped to

minimize adverse visual impact to surrounding properties.
c) All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and screened or painted to match

tanks.
ii. Water Wells

a) Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials finished in neutral
“earth tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding
properties.

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed
iii. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities

a) Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral “earth tones” and
landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties.

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed.



e. Home Occupations.

Section 104.2.F.3.a 

3. Permitted Uses:

a. One main residence.

Section 104.2.G.3.a 

3. Permitted Uses

a. One single family dwelling on any lot or parcel of land.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of December 2015 

ATTEST: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

_____________________________ __________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney  
Civil Bureau Chief 



 

 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2 0 1 5 - 0 4  
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND S E C T I O N  1 0 2  B Y  A D D I N G  A  
D E F I N I T I O N  F O R  A N  A C C E S S O R Y  D W E L L I N G  U N I T  
( A D U ) AND A D D I N G  S E C T I O N  1 0 4 . B . 2  F O R  R E G U L A T I N G  
A C C E S S O R Y  D W E L L I N G  U N I T S  A N D  D E L E T I N G  
S E C T I O N S  1 0 4 . C . 1  A N D  1 0 4 . 2 . A . 4 . a  A N D  A M E N D I N G  
S E C T I O N S  1 0 4 . 2 . F . 3 . a  A N D  1 0 4 . 2 . G . 3 . a  F O R  G U E S T  
Q U A R T E R S .   

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, 
Arizona, and upon recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Board of 
Supervisors may amend, supplement or change the regulations set forth in the zoning 
code; and 

 
WHEREAS, revisions have been made to the Zoning Ordinance for Unincorporated Areas of Gila 
County, Arizona, to include Sections  102, and 104; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 20, 2015 a public hearing was held by the Planning and  Zoning Commission 
to review and obtain public comment regarding the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance for 
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, as required by the Zoning Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended that the Board of Supervisors 
adopt these amendments to allow for Accessory Dwelling Units; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has properly noticed this Zoning Ordinance for 
Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, and conducted a public hearing in compliance with 
A.R.S. §11-251-05(C) and 11-813. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopts as 
amended the Zoning Ordinance of Unincorporated Areas of Gila County, Arizona, which will go 
into effect 30 days after Board of Supervisors’ approval: 

 
SECTION 102 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU):  An ADU is a small self-contained dwelling, typically with its own 
entrance, cooking, and bathing facilities, that shares the site of a larger, single-unit dwelling. ADUs may 



be attached, as in the case of a basement apartment, or detached, as in the case of a backyard cottage. An 
ADU is not a separate property; it has the same owner as the primary dwelling. 
 
SECTION 104  
ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONES (USE AND DENSITY DISTRICTS)  
 
In conformity with the intent and purpose of this Zoning Ordinance, “Use” and “Density” districts are 
hereby adopted in order to classify, regulate, restrict and separate uses of land and structures, lot 
dimensions and areas, yard widths and depths, percent of lot coverage and open spaces, lot area required 
for dwelling units and other structures, spacing of buildings, and the height and bulk of structures. The 
following general regulations apply to all Single Family Districts except where noted otherwise:  
 

A. INTENT AND PURPOSE  
 

To promote the development of areas primarily of single family dwellings, intending that all other 
uses be installed, operated and maintained in a manner so as to either complement, or at least be 
of a minimum disruption to such single family uses. Any use not in accordance with the Intent 
and Purpose, District Stipulations and Provisions, and Permitted Uses as set forth in this section 
shall be deemed a nuisance.  

 
B. DISTRICT STIPULATIONS AND PROVISIONS  

 
2. ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS: 

                                                            
a. There are three (3) different categories or types of Accessory Dwelling Units: 

 
i. Attached Unit 
ii. Detached Unit 
iii. Interior Unit 
 

b. Regulations for accessory dwelling units 
 

i. In all single family residential districts, one accessory dwelling unit shall be 
permitted by right on an individual lot. 

ii. The accessory dwelling unit shall not occupy more floor area than the primary 
dwelling unit 

iii. Minimum lot area for an ADU shall be 5,000 square feet. 
iv. The primary use must already be established prior to permitting an accessory 

dwelling unit. 
v. No more than one entrance per story shall be located in each building façade that 

faces a street; 
vi. The property owner must reside in the primary or accessory unit. 
vii. The Planning & Zoning Commission may grant, through a conditional use permit, 

approval to locate an accessory dwelling unit that does not meet one or more of the 
conditions of this section. The applicant must demonstrate that the application 
complies with the general purposes and intent of this chapter with no adverse effects 
to the character of the single family residential district. 

viii. A deck or balcony is permitted as a portion of any story of the accessory building; 
provided: 

a) The deck or balcony is oriented so as to not face a principal building on an 
adjoining property in a single family residential district. 



ix. The accessory building shall conform to all applicable setback and lot occupancy 
regulations; 

x. The closest façade of a detached accessory building shall be separated from the 
closest façade of the principal building by a distance of ten (10) feet minimum 
unless attached to the principal building; 

xi. Park Models (Recreational Park Trailers) are not permitted in single family 
residential districts that do not allow manufactured homes. In order for a Park Model 
to be considered the following regulations must be followed in other single family 
residential districts: 
a) The trailer tongue must be removed 
b) Must provide adequate off-street parking and legal access to that parking. 
c) Setup/installation  must follow same requirements as those for a manufactured 

home and any requirements of the Park Model manufacturer 
d) Must have exterior skirting 
e) Must be connected to permanent wastewater system 
f) Decks and patios must be self-supporting and require building permits in addition 

to the required permit for a park model 
g) Must meet all zoning, building and wastewater setback requirements 
h) Cannot be attached to the principal building and must meet the minimum 10 foot 

separation requirement from other structures 
i) Must meet all floodplain requirements 
j) Must place smoke detector in bedroom. 
k) Cannot be a primary residence, only an ADU 
l) Park models are the only type of recreational vehicle to be used as an ADU 

 
c. Development Standards 

 
i. Height. The maximum height for a detached ADU is 30 feet. 
ii. Building coverage. The building coverage shall not exceed the maximum percentage 

allowed in the zoning district. 
iii. Parking. Adequate must be provided that is off-street.  
iv. Must have adequate facilities for the discharge of wastewater. 

 
d. Design Standards 

 
i. Location of entrances. Only one main entrance may be located on the street-facing 

facade of the house, unless the house contained additional entrances before the ADU 
was created. An exception to this regulation is an entrance that does not have access 
from the ground, such as an entrance from a balcony or deck. 

ii. Exterior design details. Exterior finish materials, roof pitch, trim, eaves, window 
orientation and dimension must be the same or visually match those of the primary 
dwelling unit. 

 
104. C. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO A USE PERMIT  
 

1. A detached guest house accessory to the main dwelling only, subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. The guest house shall be confined to the rear one-half of the property, shall beseparated 
from the main dwelling by at least ten (10) feet and shall be located atleast ten (10) feet 
from the rear property line. 

 



b. The total square footage of the guest house shall not exceed 800 square feet. 
 

c. A deed restriction shall be recorded for the subject property which prohibits the rental, lease 
or sale of the guest house. 

 
1. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions: 

 
a. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner. 
b. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as guest rooms. 
c. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days. 
d. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to their rooms with no separate 

entrance allowed. 
e. All parking must be accommodated on the site. 
f. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common dining area. 
g. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be complied with, and all 

required permits must be obtained and remain valid so long as the use is in operation. 
h. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the expiration date of the permit, 

the Director, or his designate, shall review the establishment for compliance with the terms of the 
permit.  Full compliance shall result in an automatic two year extension; violations shall result in 
suspension or revocation. 

 
2. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and equipment yards) 

subject to the following conditions: 
 

a. Water Storage Tanks 
 

i. Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet. 
ii. Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown and landscaped to minimize 

adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 
iii. All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and screened or painted to match tanks. 

 
b. Water Wells 
 

i. Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials finished in neutral “earth 
tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 

1. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 
 

c. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities  
 

1. Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral “earth tones” and landscaped 
to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 

2. Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 
 

3. Home Occupations. 
 
 
Section 104.2.A.4.a 
 

4. Uses Permitted Subject to a Use Permit: 
 

a. A detached guest house appurtenant to the main dwelling only, subject to the following 
conditions: 



i. The guest house shall be confined to the rear one-half of the property, shall be 
separated from the main dwelling by at least ten (10) feet and shall be located at least 
ten (10) feet from the rear property line. 

i. The total square footage of the guest house shall not exceed 800 square feet. 
ii. A deed restriction shall be recorded for the subject property which prohibits the 

rental, lease or sale of the guest house. 
     

a. Bed and breakfast establishments, subject to the following conditions: 
i. Applicants for a use permit shall be the property owner. 

ii. No more than three (3) bedrooms shall be designated and/or used as guest rooms. 
iii. The maximum duration of stay of any one guest shall be ten (10) days. 
iv. Guests must enter through the main entrance to the dwelling to get to their rooms with no 

separate entrance allowed. 
v. All parking must be accommodated on the site. 

vi. All meals or snacks provided to guests shall be served in a common dining area. 
vii. Any applicable State and County Health Department regulations must be complied with, and 

all required permits must be obtained and remain valid so long as the use is in operation. 
viii. The Use Permit shall be issued for periods of two years.  Prior to the expiration date of the 

permit, the Director, or his designate, shall review the establishment for compliance with the 
terms of the permit.  Full compliance shall result in an automatic two year extension; 
violations shall result in suspension or revocation. 

b. The keeping of individual animals not classified as household pets or domestic farm-type animals. 
c. Non-commercial kennels. 
d. Public utility facilities (but not business offices, repair facilities or storage and equipment yards) 

subject to the following conditions: 
i.  Water Storage Tanks: 

a) Shall be no taller than sixteen (16) feet. 
b) Shall be painted in neutral “earth tone” shades of green or brown and landscaped to 

minimize adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 
c) All exposed valves and piping shall be vandal proofed and screened or painted to match 

tanks. 
ii. Water Wells 

a) Shall be enclosed in well houses constructed of durable materials finished in neutral 
“earth tones” and landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding 
properties. 

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed 
iii. Electrical and Natural Gas Facilities  

a) Shall be screened by an opaque fence or wall finished in neutral “earth tones” and 
landscaped to minimize any adverse visual impact to surrounding properties. 

b) Shall be made secure and vandal proofed. 
e. Home Occupations. 

 
 
Section 104.2.F.3.a  
 

3. Permitted Uses: 
 

a. One main residence. and one detached, non-rental guest house with separate kitchen and 
sanitary facilities 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      



Section 104.2.G.3.a 

3. Permitted Uses

a. One single family dwelling on any lot or parcel of land. which may, in addition, contain
quarters for servants or non-paying quests or non-paying guests provided no facilities for
preparation or cooking of food are contained therein. If such quarters are detached from the 
main building, such accessory buildings shall be located no closer to property lines than is 
allowed for the main building. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of December 2015 

ATTEST: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

_____________________________ __________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

____________________________
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney  
Civil Bureau Chief 



 

      
OCTOBER 27, 2015 

PRESENTED BY: GOULD, ROBERT 

GILA COUNTY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

 



Staff Report       1 
 

Scott Buzan has polled 10 counties in regards to the allowance of Park Models as dwelling units. Seven 
counties have responded. 

Three of the seven counties do allow Park Models to be used as permanent housing units. The 
remaining four either allow them as temporary with a use permit or only in RV Parks. 

The following are the results from Scott’s poll. 

 
9/25/15 
 
Below are results of an email poll I conducted with various Arizona jurisdictions on any 
requirements they may have concerning the installation of park models on residential zoned 
property or if used as accessory dwelling units. 

 
I polled 10 jurisdictions with emphasis on those in the southern part of the state and received 
seven responses. 
 
RESULTS: 

 
City of Apache Junction: Allowed on a temporary basis with an administrative use permit 
renewed yearly. They have a policy that deals with park models which is attached to this report. 

 
Bullhead City:  Only allowed in RV parks. 

 
Cochise County: Other than in RV parks, they are allowed as approved accessory living quarters 
which include guesthouses and quarters for the ill, elderly or disabled, or their caretaker.  
Attached is their Application for Accessory Living Quarters which provides additional 
information. 
 
Graham County:  They do allow park models on residential parcels as long as there are no CC&R’s 
restricting them as well as RV parks. As for use as an accessory dwelling, he was not aware of any 
currently being used as such but thought they would be allowed as a temporary caretaker 
residence. 
 
City of Mesa: Only allowed in RV parks. 
 
Maricopa County: Only allowed in approved parks. 
 
Pima County: Allowed as dwelling units in zones where manufactured homes are permitted but 
not as accessory buildings since they do not have accessory dwellings in there zoning code. They 
do permit guest houses but they are required to be site built. 
Respectfully submitted 
by: Scott Buzan 

 

Based on the results of this survey staff recommendation is to allow Park Models with a temporary use permit 
only. 

 

 



Staff Report       2 
 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on October 27 to review the proposed ordinance to add Accessory 
Dwelling Units to permitted uses in all single family residential zoning districts, with a particular focus on 
allowing the use of Park Models for accessory dwelling units. 

After a review of the data collected by Scott Buzan where he queried other counties on the use of Park Models for 
permanent housing units the Commission came to the conclusion that they were not ready at this time to include 
Park Models in the Accessory Dwelling Unit ordinance, but would like to continue to review the potential for 
allowing this to happen. 

The Commission made the motion to recommend the approval of the ordinance but not to include any mention of 
the use of park models at this time. They stated they wanted to come back at a later date on this issue. 

 



   
ARF-3442     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Official Canvass of the November 3, 2015 election results for Miami
Unified School District No. 40.

Background Information
ARS 16-642 (A) states, "The governing body holding an election shall meet
and canvass the election not less than six days nor more than twenty
days following the election."

ARS 16-642 (B) states, "The governing body of a special district as defined
in Title 48 shall present to the board of supervisors a certified copy of the
official canvass of the election at the next regularly scheduled meeting of
the board of supervisors.  For purposes of contesting a special district
election as described in section 16-673, the canvass is not complete until
the presentation to the board of supervisors is made."

ARS 15-493 states, "The official returns shall be delivered to the county
board of supervisors or the appropriate county elections officer.  Within
thirty days after the election, the county board of supervisors or the
county elections officer shall canvass the results of the election and shall
file duplicate copies of the certificate of the result of the election with the
clerk
of the board of supervisors and with the governing board of the school
district."

Evaluation
The Gila County Elections Department and the Gila County Recorder's
Office conducted an election for the Miami Unified School District (MUSD)
No. 40 on November 3, 2015.  On November 16, 2015, the MUSD Board
of Directors canvassed the election per statutory requirement.  The next
step in the statutory process is for the MUSD Board of Directors to
present the official canvass of the election to the Board of Supervisors,



which has been done.  A copy of the election results is attached to this
agenda item.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors is required by statute to be presented with a
certified copy of the official canvass of the election at the next regularly
scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
The Gila County Elections Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors review the canvass of the Miami Unified School District No.
40 and declare the results of the election official.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the results of the Miami
Unified School District No. 40 election that was held on November 3,
2015, in Gila County, Arizona and declare the results official.  (Eric
Mariscal)

Attachments
Miami Unified School District No. 40 Election Results
Agenda 11-17-15
ARS 16-642
ARS 15-493
Letter to Miami Area School District No. 40 



















MIAMI AREA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 40 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC MEETING 

November 17, 2015 
Miami High School Library 

4739 E. Ragus Road, Miami, AZ 85539 
6:30 P.M. 
AGENDA 

 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B. Roll call of Members, Welcome To Guests 

 
C. Approval of Agenda 

 
D. Minutes October 13, 2015 

 
E. Call to the Audience – The Open Meeting Law (OML) permits public bodies to allow members of 

the public to comment at meetings during a properly conducted “open call to the public.”  At 
properly conducted open calls to the public, individual members of the future agenda, but they may 
not dialogue with the presenter or collectively discuss, consider, or decide any item not listed on the 
agenda.  Public bodies may impose reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions on speakers, but 
any content-based restrictions must be narrowly tailored to effectuate a compelling state interest.  
Pursuant to certain Arizona statues, disruptive attendees of meetings may be removed to permit the 
public body to continue to conduct the public’s business. 
 

      F.  Reports and Correspondence 
 

1. Administration Reports 
Sherry Dorathy, Superintendent 
1. Election Results 
2. LKIMS Playground Update 
3. State Lawsuit Funding 
4. Dr. Dorathy’s Evaluation 
 
Lisa Marquez 
1. State Lawsuit Budget 

 
Glen Lineberry, MJHS Principal 
1. K-9 visit, Sheriff’s visit 

 
Administrator reports are included in your packet.  Please ask individual administrators if  
you have any questions. 

 
2. Communication “To and From the Board” 
3. Presentation: MJSHS Fishing With Attitude 

       
G.    Old Business 



    1. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Naming the Auditorium 
 

H.      New Business 
1.  Ratification of Warrants 
2.  Student and Auxiliary Reports 
3.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Donations 
4.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on the Teacher Evaluation System Statement of      
     Assurance for the 2016-2017 SY:      
5.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Final HIA report 
6.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on the JOM IGA 
7.  Discussion, Consideration, and Action on CVIT IGA 
8.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Insurance Rates Correction 
9.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Revised Athletic Code 

    10.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Revised Policy Regulation HA-R 
    11.  Discussion, Consideration and Action on Election Results 

                        12.  Discussion, Consideration, and Action on Issues Surrounding Staff Roles in Drug,  
           Searches/Interrogation, and Medical Marijuana Policies 

 
             

I.   Personnel 
                  1. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Certified Contract Addendum 
       2. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Certified Resignation 
                  3. Discussion, Consideration and Action Certified Contract 
                  4. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Classified Resignation 
                  5. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Supplemental Pay Forfeiture 
                  6. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Classified Work Agreement for 2015-2016 SY 
                  7. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Supplemental Contracts for 2016-2017 SY 
                  8. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Volunteer for 2016-2017 SY 
       9. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Supplemental Resignation. 
     10. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Athletic Director and Assistant Athletic Director  
     11. Discussion, Consideration and Action on Interim Athletic Director Position 
               
       

J.   Executive Session 
  Legal Consultation/Advise/Instruction to Attorney pursuant ARS § 38-431.03 (A) (3) 
  and (A) (4) 
 

(1) Update on CV 2015-013307 

(2) Update on File Number: 500823 

(3) Information from Attorney 
 

                      
*Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter, by contacting Julia 
Asanovich at (928) 425-3271.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 
 



*Executive Session A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A) – Any and/or all items on this agenda (1.) for the purpose of discussions or 
considerations of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of a 
public officer, appointee or employee.  In accordance with the law, any such discussion or consideration shall occur in the public 
meeting upon the demand of the administrator, with the exception of salary discussions. 

 
*The Board may vote to hold an executive session pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion or consultation for legal 
advice with its attorney on any matter listed on the agenda.  The Board’s attorney may appear in person or telephonically. 
 
*A complete copy of the meeting agenda can be found on the Miami USD website: miamiusd40.org.  Additional information 
regarding this agenda can be obtained from Julia Asanovich at 4739 E. Ragus Road, Miami, AZ 85539 twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the Board meeting. 









   

ARF-3471     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Patti Dremler, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Public Works received an application and petition to begin the process to abandon a portion
of Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Streets as shown on the map of Arlington Heights, Official Map No. 31,
Gila County Records.

Background Information
Arlington Heights subdivision was recorded in April 1911. Some of the roads in the subdivision have
never been constructed due to the topography of the land. Through the years there have been previous
abandonments of these roads by past Boards of Supervisors. A portion of Blake and Coplen was
abandoned in 1973 by Resolution 72-2-2. A portion of Hobart was abandoned in 1978 by Resolution
78-6-1.

Evaluation
Abandoning these roads will not deny anyone access to their property.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of all involved to begin the process to abandon portions of Blake, Coplen, and
Hobart Streets.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Director that the Board begin the process to
abandon portions of Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Streets.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept an Application and Citizens' Petition to begin the process to
abandon a portion of Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Streets.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments

Map
Aerial
Plat
Application and Petition













   

ARF-3470     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Patti Dremler, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Purchase requisition to acquire a right-of-way needed for a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin.

Background Information
In April 2009, Gila County entered into IGA/JPA09-132I with the Arizona Department of Transportation
for the design of a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin, Arizona.

The design is 95% percent complete. Before the design can be finalized a Right-Of-Way (ROW) needs to
be acquired for the bridge and roadway approaches to the bridge. A ROW on Tonto National Forest Land
has already been acquired. The remaining ROW on private property has been identified and appraised
following the guidelines of the Uniform Relocation Act.

On June 5, 2012, the Board of Supervisors authorized staff to submit offer letters and copies of the
appraisals to the property owners identified as having property needed for the bridge and roadway
approaches.

On August 18, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved the purchase of three of the needed parcels of
land for the bridge project.

The purchase was completed with two of the three owners:

The owner of parcel 201-14-001L (Jacobs) had agreed to the price of $10,000 for his property, consisting
of 10,862 sq., ft. The price breakdown came out to $0.92 per sq. ft. When Jacobs found out his neighbor
(Henderson) had asked for $6000 for his property, which consisted of 4414 sq. ft., with a price
breakdown of $1.36 per sq. ft. Mr. Jacobs changed his mind and requested the same compensation per
sq. ft. as his neighbor. This increased his price from $10,000 which the Board approved during the
meeting of August 8, 2014, to $14,772.32 for an additional cost $4772.32.

The owner of parcel 201-14-001K (Henderson) had agreed to a price of $6000. This was for right-of-way
needed for the bridge. The owner also stated that the road and bridge would divide his property and
asked the County to purchase the remaining property to the north of the road. This property is
approximately 0.267 acres or 11,631 sq. ft. The price of this additional property is $15,818,16. The
property is used as a road to provide access to several homes in the area. The County will bring this
road into the County’s Maintained Roadway System and receive HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds)
revenue for maintenance of the road. The price agreed upon for this parcel is the same price per sq. ft.
that the owner agreed to for the parcel needed for the bridge. It was decided that with this additional
purchase request to wait and purchase both parcels at the same time instead of trying to incorporate
the parcel needed for the bridge into the purchase request that went to the Board on August 8, 2015.

Evaluation
Acquisition of these properties is critical to finalize the design of the Bridge over Tonto Creek Project.



Acquisition of these properties is critical to finalize the design of the Bridge over Tonto Creek Project.
Once all needed right-of-way has been acquired, the plans can be finalized and Public Works can begin
applying for federal funds that may be available to assist with the construction of the project.

There is one additional parcel that remains to be acquired and Public Works is in negotiations for that
parcel. Discussions with the owner have been positive and it is believed that a mutual agreement can be
reached.  Public Works staff does not want to delay the acquisition of the three properties; therefore, it is
recommended that the Board proceed with their acquisition at this time.  Hopefully a request to
purchase the additional parcel will be presented to the Board in the near future.

Conclusion
Escrow has been opened at Pioneer Title Agency in Payson on three properties needed for the bridge and
roadway approaches. The cost breakdown is shown below for each property:

Fees for parcel no. 201-14-001L (Jacobs)
Purchase Price $14,772.32
Escrow Fee $326.00
Standard Owners Title Policy $420.00
Recording Fee $25.00
Total Jacobs: $15,543.32

Fees for parcel no. 201-14-001K (Henderson North Portion)
Purchase Price $21,871.51
Escrow Fee $326.00
Standard Owners Title Policy $420.00
Recording Fee $25.00
Henderson north parcel $22,642.51

Fees for parcel no. 201-14-001K (Henderson South Portion)
Purchase Price $6,000
Escrow Fee $326
Standard Owners Title Policy $420
Recording Fee $25
Henderson south parcel $6,771

Total cost for the three parcels $44,956.83

Funds for the purchase will come from the County’s ½ cent transportation excise tax.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Public Works that the Board approve a purchase requisition
to Pioneer Title Agency in the amount of $44,956.83 for the purchase of three parcels of land that is
needed in Tonto Basin for the right-of-way for the Tonto Creek Bridge.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a purchase requisition to Pioneer Title Agency in the amount
of $44,956.83 for the purchase of three parcels of land in Tonto Basin to be used for right-of-way for the
Tonto Creek Bridge, and authorize the Chairman’s signature on all documents needed to complete the
purchase.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-3427     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment or reappointment of members of the Board of Supervisors to
various boards, committees and organizations.

Background Information
Each year, members of the Board of Supervisors are provided the
opportunity to serve on other boards, committees and organizations by
virtue of their membership on the Board of Supervisors. They are
elected/appointed by their peers to represent the interests of Gila County
on the following boards, committees, and organizations:

On December 2, 2014, the Board of Supervisors (BOS) appointed the
following BOS members to serve during 2015, as follows: 
1) Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office
Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers-Supervisor Pastor; 2)
Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office
Dispatchers-Supervisor Pastor; 3) Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System Local Board-Supervisor Marcanti; 4) Gila County Board of
Health-Supervisor Pastor; 5) Gila County Local Emergency Planning
Committee-Supervisor Marcanti; 6) Central Arizona Governments
Regional Council-Supervisor Pastor; 7) County Supervisors Association
Legislative Policy Committee-Supervisor Martin; 8) Eastern Arizona
Counties Organization-Supervisor Martin; 9) San Carlos Apache Tribe
Partnership Steering Committee-Supervisor Marcanti; 10) Coalition of
Arizona/New Mexico Counties-Supervisor Martin; and 11) Allied Health
Care Advisory Committee-Supervisor Pastor.

In October 2015, Gila Community College asked Supervisor Pastor to
serve on the Industry and Mining Advisory Committee as a County
Supervisor and a representative of Gila County government, so the Board
of Supervisors will need to also approve that appointment.



Evaluation
It is important for the Board to be represented on the listed boards,
committees and organizations.

Conclusion
It is appropriate for the Board of Supervisors to review its representation
on the various boards, commissions and committees as listed on this
agenda item for consideration of serving during calendar year 2016.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board discuss the various boards, committees
and organizations and appoint or reappoint members to serve for 2016.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action regarding appointments or
reappointments of members of the Board of Supervisors to the following
boards, committees and organizations for calendar year 2016:  1)
Correctional Officers Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office
Detention Officers & Non-Uniformed Officers; 2) Correctional Officers
Retirement Plan Local Board for Sheriff's Office Dispatchers; 3) Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board; 4) Gila County Board of
Health; 5) Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee; 6) Central
Arizona Governments Regional Council; 7) County Supervisors
Association Legislative Policy Committee; 8) Eastern Arizona Counties
Organization; 9) San Carlos Apache Tribe Partnership Steering
Committee; 10) Coalition of Arizona/New Mexico Counties; 11) Gila
Community College Allied Health Care Advisory Committee; and 12) Gila
Community College Industry and Mining Advisory Board.  (Don
McDaniel)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-3461     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Nancy Rutherford

Health Programs Manager
Health & Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment #1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) (Contract  No. ADHS16-098369) with the
Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS).

Background Information
The ADHS has integrated multiple grants into one IGA and the title of the new integrated contract is called "Healthy
People Healthy Communities."  Implementation of this IGA will be completed in three (3) phases.  Phase 1:  The
Tobacco Free, Chronic Disease, and Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI) grants were integrated and
implemented on July 1, 2015; Phase 2: The Public Health Services block grants were integrated and implemented on
October 1, 2015; and, Phase 3: The Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family Planning, and the Maternal and Child Health
grants will be integrated and completed by June 30, 2016. 

The original Contract No. ADHS15-094962 was signed by the Board of Supervisors on June 9, 2015, and then due to
a system change at ADHS the contract number was changed to No. ADHS16-098369 and approved by the Board of
Supervisors on September 15, 2015.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 integrates the Phase 3 grants into one contract entitled "Healthy People Healthy Communities." 
The total amount of the new contract will be $360,682 and it will be administered by the Gila County Health
Department.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 will continue the integration process and place Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family
Planning, and Maternal and Child Health Services into the Healthy People Health Communities grant. 

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Health and Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to an IGA (Contract #ADHS16-098369) with ADHS.  

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract #ADHS16-098369) with the Arizona
Department of Health Services to integrate Phase 3 grants (Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family Planning, and
Maternal and Child Health Services) into one contract entitled "Healthy People Healthy Communities."

Attachments

ADHS16-098369 Amendment 1
ADHS15-094962 Amendment 1
Original Contract ADHS15-094962
Approval as to Form



phorn
Typewritten text
Michael A. Pastor 

phorn
Typewritten text
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

phorn
Typewritten text
Jefferson R. Dalton

phorn
Typewritten text
Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief

















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3482     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Community Services Division
Fiscal Year: 2015/2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2015
through June
30, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Arizona Community Action Association
(ACAA) and Gila County Community Services 

Background Information
The Department of Economic Security (DES) issued funds to the ACAA to be used for a
one time distribution to all ACAA partners for the cost incurred in the operation of the
CAP60 case management software for the fiscal year 2015/2016.

The Board of Supervisors tabled the approval of this agenda item at its November 17,
2015, meeting at the request of the Community Services Division Director.  At that
time it was believed that Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief,
had a concern with the MOA; however, he later confirmed that he did not have any
issue with the agreement but that was not conveyed to the BOS before the meeting. 
The MOA is in correct form to be approved by the Board of Supervisors.

Evaluation
The purpose of this MOA is to establish terms and conditions under which ACAA
agrees to provide a one time payment of $7,539 to Gila County Community Services
for CAP60 case management software.  By receiving this payment, Gila County
Community Services agrees to deliver the Case Management (CMT) Monthly, Low
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Annual, and the Results Oriented
Management and Accountability (ROMA)  reports.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this MOA, it will ensure ACAA in providing
payment to Gila County Community Services which will enable them to utilize the
CAP60 case management software. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of



The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve this MOA between the Arizona Community Action Association and
Gila County Community Services.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Arizona Community Action
Association and Gila County Community Services to receive a one-time lump sum of
$7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila County Community Services in the
operation of the CAP60 case management software.

Attachments
Memorandum of Agreement with Arizona Community Action Association







   
ARF-3485     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Community Development Division

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board Re-appointments

Background Information
Mike Hanich and Peter Oddonetto currently serve on the Gila County
Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board.  Their terms of office will
expire on December 31, 2015.  Both Mr. Hanich and Mr. Oddonetto have
agreed to serve another 4-year term of office on this governing board.

Evaluation
It would be beneficial to Gila County for the Board of Supervisors to
re-appoint Mr. Hanich and Mr. Oddonetto to the Gila County Building
Safety Advisory and Appeals Board.  There are certain statutory
requirements for the representation on this governing board from the
following categories and the person must be licensed in Arizona: 
architect, engineer, general contractor, person representing the public
and a county resident, and a person engaged in the electrical, mechanical
or plumbing trade.  Mr. Hanich is an architectural draftsman and Mr.
Oddonetto is a general contractor.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors has the responsibility to appoint members to
this governing board; therefore, the Board should consider re-appointing
Mr. Hanich and Mr. Oddonetto for another 4-year term as they have
graciously offered to serve another term of office.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider re-appointing
Mr. Hanich and Mr. Oddonetto to the Gila County Building Safety
Advisory and Appeals Board for another four years.



Suggested Motion
Approval of the reappointment of Mike Hanich and Peter Oddonetto to the
Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board for another
4-year term of office beginning January 1, 2016, through December 31,
2019.

Attachments
Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board Member List



 

 

GILA COUNTY BUILDING SAFETY ADVISORY AND APPEALS BOARD 

(Proposed to the BOS on 12/1/15) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Perry Schall-Plumber D C (10/22/13) 1 year, 7 months 01/01/14 – 12/31/17 01/01/14 – 12/31/17 

Clint Miller-Architect D C (10/22/13) 13 months 01/01/14 – 12/31/17 01/01/14 – 12/31/17 

Mike Hanich-Architectural 
Draftsman 

D C (01/24/12) 7 years, 9 months 01/01/16 – 12/31/19 01/01/16 – 12/31/19 

Walter Del Campo-Electrical 
Contractor 

D B (Peter Havens) 
(06/25/13) 

- 06/25/13-12/31/16 01/01/13-12/31/16 

Bruce Binkley-Architect D C (11/18/14) 1 year, 8 months 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

Bob O’Connor-HVAC 
Contractor 

D C (11/18/14) 6 years, 9 months 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

Peter Oddonetto-General 
Contractor 

D C (01/24/12) 7 years, 9 months 01/01/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  October 23, 2007 
B. Per A.R.S. 11-862 – Board must have 5 but not more than 7 members from the following categories and must be licensed in AZ:  architect, engineer, general contractor, person 

representing the public and a county resident, and a person engaged in the electrical, mechanical or plumbing trade. 
C. Per Gila County Building Ordinance, Section 4(B)(2) – Board members must be residents of Gila County but cannot be employees of Gila County government. 
D. Appointed by the BOS with 4-year terms of office…staggered so that at least one but no more than two terms expire each year. 

 
2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E.  Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-3469     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 2015

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr., Justice

Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for October
2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Justice Court Monthly Report for October 2015









   
ARF-3476     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2015





































































   
ARF-3478     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for October 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the October 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Superior Court October 2015





















   
ARF-3500     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

October 2015

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office October 2015 monthly
activity report. 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of October 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
October 2015













   
ARF-3494     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

November 17, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
November 17, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 17, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Attachments
11-17-15 BOS Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 15 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 17, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager, Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and Civil 
Bureau Chief; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.  
 
ABSENT:  Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Eric Mariscal led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Jim Harper of the Mountain Bible Church in 
Payson delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Presentation of the City of Globe Public Service Answering Point 
closure and transition of dispatch services to the Gila County Sheriff's 
Office.   
 
Debra Williams, 9-1-1 Coordinator, provided a slide presentation of the Globe 
Police Department’s Public Service Answering Point closure, and highlighted 
the success of the transition of these services to the Gila County Sheriff’s 
Office.  She also explained the fundamental workings of the 9-1-1 services 
operations, and the benefits realized by responders, the public and by 9-1-1 
dispatchers.  Chairman Pastor asked some questions, which were answered.   
 



Page 2 of 15 

 

J. Adam Shepherd, Sheriff, acknowledged the members of local area fire 
departments, 9-1-1 dispatch, and Mark Nipp, City of Globe Police Chief, who 
were present in the audience and he asked if anyone wanted to provide any 
comments or if there were any questions regarding this subject.  Vice-
Chairman Martin thanked the group for their leadership and commented that 
the transition of these services to the Sheriff’s Office will better serve the public 
and it is a better use of everyone’s time.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired if, in the 
future, the Town of Miami chooses to be included in this partnership; would 
the Sheriff’s Office have the resources to be able to include the Town of Miami?  
Sheriff Shepherd replied that the plan is for the entire region to be centralized; 
therefore, the Town of Miami may join the partnership at any time.  Chairman 
Pastor inquired whether northern Gila County would be affected.  Sheriff 
Shepherd replied that the phone service is lacking the technology necessary to 
accomplish combining these services; however, this is something that is being 
prepared for in the northern part of the County. 
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if any of the fire department attendees would like to 
comment.  Nick Renon, Tri-City Fire District Chief, stated that the 
collaborations with the Sheriff’s Office have been great, and that this 
partnership has solved major communication issues.  He added that he would 
like to continue Tri-City Fire District’s partnership with the County. 
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action for the public sale of a portion of Canal 
Street as shown on Official Map No. 45 and to accept a bid in the amount 
of $145.00 from Clyde Elmer for that portion of Canal Street adjacent to 
parcel 207-07-028D.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that Canal Street is 
located in Midland City, which is between Globe and Claypool.  Canal Street 
was never built from the time it was platted.  Abandonment of this portion of 
Canal Street will take care of a building that is encroached onto Canal Street.  
Mr. Elmer owns the property on both sides of the subject property; therefore, 
he has preferential rights to bid on it.  Mr. Elmer submitted a bid which meets 
the requirements established by the current Gila County policy on the 
abandonment of roadways in Gila County.  Chairman Pastor opened the public 
hearing and no comments were received; therefore, he closed the public 
hearing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously accepted a bid in the amount of $145.00 
from Clyde Elmer for the purchase of a portion of Canal Street as shown on 
Official Map No. 45.   
 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  



Page 3 of 15 

 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. C-50-16-008-M-00 between Maricopa County and Gila 
County regarding the use of Maricopa County's Sheriff's Office Basic 
Training Academy for the period of June 29, 2015, through June 30, 
2018.   
 
Mike Johnson, Undersheriff (via ITV in Payson), stated that this 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is simply an extension of the method of 
operation with regard to training academy classes which have occurred over 
the past several years.  The only noticeable change in the IGA is that Gila 
County will now be invoiced $500 per recruit to help offset training costs 
which, in the past, has been absorbed by Maricopa County.  The Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office recommends approval of the IGA to continue the relationship 
with the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office in providing training of recruits 
during the 24-week basic police academy held at the Maricopa County Sheriff’s 
Office.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that $500 is “cheap for the price of what 
we’ve been getting” and she understands that Maricopa County wanted to 
recoup its costs.  Supervisor Marcanti agreed and stated that “it would cost 
quite a bit of money to set up our own training center.” 
 
Jeff Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief, stated that 
there is some required statutory language missing from the IGA; therefore, he 
is unable to sign it as being “approved as to form.”  Sheriff Shepherd and 
Undersheriff Johnson offered comments supporting approval of the IGA, which 
is being presented to the Board due to the $500 cost for each recruit now being 
charged by Maricopa County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. C-50-16-008-M-00.    
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Memorandum of 
Understanding Agreement No. 2015-405D-502 between the Governor's 
Office of Highway Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office to accept the 
regional DUI vehicle that will be utilized by all law enforcement agencies 
in Gila County for DUI enforcement whereby the Sheriff's Office fleet will 
be increased by one vehicle to accommodate the DUI vehicle.   
 
Johnny Sanchez, Chief Deputy Sheriff, stated that acquiring the DUI (driving 
under the influence) van will benefit the entire County.  Each of the local area 
law enforcement agencies, with the exception of the San Carlos Apache Tribe, 
have submitted letters of support for the receipt of this DUI van from the 
Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS).  He added that the vehicle will be 
housed and maintained by the Gila County Sheriff’s Office and that it will be 
driven by Sheriff’s Office deputies.  Mr. Sanchez stated that this is the first 
time this type of agreement is being implemented in Gila County and he 



Page 4 of 15 

 

believes it will bring all law enforcement agencies together for the benefit of the 
citizens.  The cost of the 2015 transit van is approximately $34,715 and the 
GOHS is adding approximately $52,120 in equipment to the vehicle at no cost 
to Gila County.  The County will be responsible for regular maintenance of the 
vehicle and the GOHS will pay for any major repairs the van may need.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she is glad the County is obtaining this 
vehicle.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired if the equipment to be added to the DUI 
van will be certified.  Mr. Sanchez replied that the equipment is certified with 
the Department of Public Safety and that testing and processing will be done at 
the scene.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the officers performing the DUI testing 
are certified.  Mr. Sanchez replied that the Sheriff’s Office is working to certify 
additional officers, and he added that the intent of using the DUI van is for all 
law enforcement agencies to work together as needed. 
 
Mr. Dalton stated that this is an agreement between two governmental 
agencies; therefore, it is an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) and subject to 
the terms of such.  His concern is that certain statutory language is missing 
from the agreement.  The GOHS has titled the agreement as a Memorandum of 
Understanding.  Gila County requested the GOHS to change the agreement to 
an IGA; however, that request was denied.  Chairman Pastor stated that the 
County Attorney’s comments will be included in the minutes.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she believes that the items from the Sheriff’s 
Office are newsworthy and she asked Debra Williams, 9-1-1 Coordinator, to 
work with Janice Cook, Administrative Services Manager, to write articles for 
both items to be posted on the County’s website as she believes “the stories 
need to be told, and told well.”  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved 
Memorandum of Understanding Agreement No. 2015-405D-502.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 041015-1 whereby the Gila County Sheriff's Office shall 
continue to provide law enforcement services to the Town of Star Valley 
for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, with compensation 
in the amount of $383,273.   
 
Sheriff Shepherd provided information that this intergovernmental agreement 
(IGA) with the Town of Star Valley has been in effect since 2009.  He stated that 
the IGA has been working very well.  The County Finance Department notified 
the Sheriff’s Office that the IGA expired and re-negotiations with the Town of 
Star Valley need to occur.  Due to a lack of time to prepare a new IGA, it has 
been decided to operate under the original terms of the existing IGA for an 
additional year to allow time to negotiate a new IGA with the Town of Star 



Page 5 of 15 

 

Valley.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved Intergovernmental Agreement No. 
041015-1.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. ADHS16-110815) between the Arizona 
Department of Health Services and Gila County Health and Emergency 
Services in the amount of $95,517 a year to implement a prescription 
drug overdose and prevention program in Gila County for the period of 
September 1, 2015, through August 31, 2020.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, provided 
information that on June 9, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved the 
request to apply for the funding as described above.  The grant funding has 
been awarded; therefore, he requested that the Board approve this item to 
accept the funding in the amount of $95,517 per year for five years.   Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. 
ADHS16-110815).   
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to select the firm of Election Systems 
& Software for the future purchase of voting equipment to be utilized at 
vote centers, precinct polling sites, Gila County Recorder's Office, and 
Gila County Elections Department, and further to instruct staff to 
negotiate the purchase for a not to exceed amount of $395,000.   
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, provided information that the Gila County 
Elections Department and the Gila County Recorder's Office have reviewed the 
voting equipment that has been demonstrated by Election Systems & Software, 
Robis Elections Inc., and Unisyn Voting Solutions Inc.  Upon review of the 
products supplied by those vendors, there is only one company that has a 
complete voting system that will allow Gila County to pursue the transition 
from precinct based voting to vote centers.  For vote centers to work, the 
electronic poll book, ballot on demand printers and accessible voting units are 
essential.  Only Election Systems & Software has all of the components 
necessary to ensure the effective and seamless operation of vote centers on 
Election Day.  It is the recommendation of the Gila County Elections Director 
and the Gila County Recorder that the Board of Supervisors select Election 
Systems & Software as the vendor.  In addition to the $277,000 already set 
aside, additional funding in the approximate amount of $118,000 will be 
required for this purchase.  The Board asked Mr. Mariscal some questions 
regarding the funding. 
 



Page 6 of 15 

 

Mr. Mariscal introduced Paul Griego from Unisyn, who began to speak about 
the Unisyn Election equipment.  With permission from Chairman Pastor, 
County Manager Don McDaniel advised that this agenda item was not 
scheduled as a public hearing.  He added that since the other vendors who had 
also provided a presentation to the Board at a previous meeting were not 
allowed to speak further about their product, Mr. Griego would not be offered 
that opportunity.  Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Griego for his comments and 
requested a motion from the Board.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously selected the firm 
of Election Systems & Software for the future purchase of voting equipment to 
be utilized at vote centers, precinct polling sites, Gila County Recorder's Office, 
and Gila County Elections Department, and instructed staff to negotiate the 
purchase for a not to exceed amount of $395,000.   
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition in order 
to begin the process to abandon a portion of Elaine Way which is adjacent 
to Lot 9 Christopher Creek Haven Plat Five, an area east of Payson.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that this property is located in the Christopher Creek area.  
A portion of the house, stairs, upper deck and a building encroach into the 
right-of-way; however, it is not actually located where the roadway exists, but 
rather where vehicles travel.  Upon Board approval, a meeting will be 
scheduled with the neighboring homeowners to decide how much of the 
roadway will be abandoned.  At that time a fee will be set and the homeowners 
in the area will be notified as to the exact amount of roadway that will be 
abandoned.  Chairman Pastor inquired as to the number of feet that will be 
abandoned, to which Mr. Sanders replied that it would be less than 100 feet.  
Chairman Pastor asked if permits were obtained at the time the building was 
constructed.  Mr. Sanders replied that he didn’t know if the property was 
permitted; however, a survey a few years ago showed that it was extended into 
the right-of- way, and it is only that portion, as part of the lot, that will be 
abandoned.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously accepted a Citizens' Petition in order to begin 
the process to abandon a portion of Elaine Way. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept a Citizens' Petition in order 
to begin the process to abandon a portion of W. Cocopah Lane which is 
adjacent to Lot 14 Geronimo Estates Unit One, an area north of Payson.   
 
Mr. Sanders stated that Cocopah Lane was previously known as Arrowhead 
Drive, Geronimo Estates, and it is located just south of Control Road and 
approximately 15 miles north of Payson.  Property ownership changed for Lot 
14 and a recent survey showed that a fence, propane tank and a portion of the 
carport was in the right-of-way.  The owners have removed the fence and the 



Page 7 of 15 

 

propane tank.  Upon Board approval, the next step in the process will be to 
abandon a 5 x 50 feet area, which will not encroach into the roadway or cause 
harm to anyone using the road. Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously accepted a 
Citizens' Petition in order to begin the process to abandon a portion of W. 
Cocopah Lane.   
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 
Contract No. 041515-7 in order to retain the services of Steven E. Burk, 
Attorney, for the period of July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016; who 
assists the Superior Court in Gila County as a public defender on an 
annual basis.   
 
Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer and Superior Court Administrator, 
stated that in 2014 the Superior Court attorney contracts were revised to 
include liability insurance.  He stated that attorney Steven E. Burk now has 
liability insurance, which was the reason for the delay on this contract.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved Professional Services Contract No. 041515-7.   
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement-Economic 
Development Grant (Agreement No. 103015-1) between Gila County and 
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging whereby the 
County will disburse up to $21,500; and, further, the Board determines 
this is for the benefit of the public and will improve or enhance the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the County has been a supporter of the Pinal-Gila 
Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency for many years and a large portion of 
the funds are used for home-delivered meals.  Each year the Board approves 
this funding request and staff recommends continuing with the funding.  
Supervisor Marcanti indicated his support to provide this funding, and he 
stated that it’s unfortunate that the federal government continues to reduce 
funding for counties, which affects these types of programs.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved an Agreement-Economic Development Grant 
(Agreement No. 103015-1).   
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-11-02 
regarding the 2016 legislative priorities and to authorize the Chairman's 
signature on letters to be mailed to state legislators requesting 
consideration and support of legislative priorities which are outlined in 
the resolution.   
 



Page 8 of 15 

 

Mr. McDaniel stated that since 2009, actions taken by state government have 
impacted Gila County by approximately $5.1 million; additionally, the current 
structure of the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System is unsustainable 
which is causing concern.  Gila County also faces significant risk from the 
uncertain funding related to Payment in Lieu of Taxes and the Secure Rural 
Schools programs.  Despite declining assessed property values, the County has 
retained its $4.19 tax rate.  Resolution No. 15-11-02 addresses the Board’s 
concerns; therefore, staff recommends adoption of the resolution and approval 
of the letters to state legislators.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution 
15-11-02 and authorized the Chairman's signature on letters to be mailed to 
state legislators.  (A copy of the resolution is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of an application submitted by the Gila County Gem & 
Mineral Society, Inc. (Society) to waive the rental fees for the use of the 
Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for the Society's annual Gem & Mineral 
Show to be held on January 15-17, 2016, and not waive the security fees.  
 
B.  Approval of an application submitted by the Gila County Cattle 
Growers Association (GCCGA) to waive the rental fees for the use of the 
Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds for GCCGA's Holiday Dinner-Dance and 
Salute to Ranching to be held on December 5, 2015, and not waive the 
security fees.  
 
C.  Acknowledgment of Tom Sexton's resignation from the Pleasant Valley 
Fire District Board of Directors and the appointment of Stan Marshall to 
fulfill Mr. Sexton's unexpired term effective September 16, 2015, through 
December 31, 2018.  
 
D.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS14-053062) between the Gila County Health and 
Emergency Services Division and the Arizona Department of Health 
Services which amends the price sheets for the Women, Infants and 
Children Program and the Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Program for the 
contract period of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.  
 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS12-010890) between the Health and Emergency 



Page 9 of 15 

 

Services Division and the Arizona Department of Health Services which 
amends the price sheet for the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program 
and the Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program for the contract period 
of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.  
 
F.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 01142015 between the 
Arizona Community Action Association and Gila County Community 
Services Division which provides a total of $3,965 of additional Southwest 
Gas Energy Share funds and extends the contract date to June 30, 2016.  
 
G.  Approval of a HOME Program Close-Out Report for Arizona Department 
of Housing Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Contract No. 309-13 
which will successfully end the contract and ensure that Gila County 
Housing Services has met all requirements of said contract.  
 
H.  Approval of a Memorandum of Agreement between Arizona Community 
Action Association and Gila County Community Services to receive a one-
time lump sum of $7,539 to cover the costs incurred by Gila County 
Community Services in the operation of the CAP60 case management 
software.  
 
I.  Approval of Amendment No. 6 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02) between the 
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County 
Community Services Division to provide up to $27,150 as a 
reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1, 2015, through 
June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.  
 
J.  Approval of Amendment No. 3 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. EW-ESA-14-4181-02) between the 
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County 
Community Services Division to provide up to $30,547 as a 
reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1, 2015, through 
June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.  
 
K.  Approval of Amendment No. 5 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. LW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4) between the 
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and the Gila County 
Community Services Division to provide up to $89,826 as a 
reimbursement ceiling for the contract period of July 1, 2015, through 
June 30, 2016, and for other minor contract revisions.  
 
L.  Approval of the Rental Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Agreement  - 
Close-out Version between Health Choice Integrated Care, LLC and Gila 



Page 10 of 15 

 

County dba Gila County Public Housing Authority, which will allocate 
funds in the amount of $27,090 to be used to help Gila County residents 
who meet the program qualifications for the period of October 1, 2015, 
through June 30, 2016.  
 
M.  Approval to appoint the following individuals to the Gila County Board 
of Health for a term of office beginning November 17, 2015, through 
December 31, 2019:  Lance Porter, M.D., Linda Scoville, Denise Hansen 
and Rick Heron.  
 
N.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
O.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  
 
P.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
Q.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
R.  Acknowledgment of the August 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
S.  Acknowledgment of the September 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
T.  Approval of the October 20, 2015, and October 27, 2015, Board of 
Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
U.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
October 6, 2015, October 13, 2015, October 20, 2015, and October 27, 
2015.  
 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Amy LaFleur – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 10/08/15 – General Fund 
– DOH 10/16/06 
2.  Nancy Hinojos – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 10/02/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 09/08/15 
3.  Linda Lemon – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 
10/09/15 – General Fund – DOH 07/28/08 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 



Page 11 of 15 

 

4.  Carl Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Executive 
Administrative Assistant – 10/19/15 – General Fund  
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Shaunae Casillas – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Specialist – 10/01/15 – Tobacco Free Environment Fund  
6.  Travis Todd – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/29/15 – General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Bethany Cheney – Health and Emergency Services – From Worksite 
Wellness Coordinator (.50) – To Community Health Policy Analyst – 10/12/15 – 
From Population Health Policy Initiative Fund – To Population Health Policy 
Initiative Fund(.50)/Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education(.50) 
Funds 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
8.  Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency 
Management/Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager – 10/05/15 – 
From Bio Terrorism Program (.30)/General(.70) Funds – To Various Funds – 
Change in fund codes – Change in fund codes 
REQUEST TO POST: 
9.  Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – Vacated by Rhonda Rolf 
10.  Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Arthur 
Power IV 
11.  Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by Linda 
Lemon 
12.  Community Development – Temporary Administrative Clerk – Vacated by 
Patsy Clayton 
 
OCTOBER 13, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Chris Phillips – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Specialist – 10/15/15 – Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services – DOH 07/02/07 
2.  John McCrory – Public Works – Flood Control Technician – 10/16/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 06/02/14 
3.  Stacie Allison – Finance – Accountant Senior – 10/23/15 – General Fund – 
DOH 09/25/06 
4.  Bernadette Ortiz – Public Works – Rural Addressing Analyst – 10/08/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 09/14/15 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
5.  Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 
10/07/15 – Library Assistance Fund 
NEW HIRES: 
6.  Mark De Los Reyes – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/19/15 – 
General Fund – FY 16 budgeted position 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 



Page 12 of 15 

 

7.  Jade Kaufman – Community Development – Permit Technician – 10/27/15 
– General Fund  
8.  Bianca Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 10/20/15 – Health Service Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
9.  Jerry M. Moore – From Public Works – To Community Development – From 
Building Maintenance Technician – To Zoning and Building Inspector – 
10/19/15 – From Facilities Management Fund – To General Fund – Replacing 
Mark Kaufman 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
10.  Estelle Belarde – Community Services – Housing Services Administrator – 
07/01/15 - From Housing Fund – To Housing(.50)/Housing Rehabilitation(.50) 
Funds – Change in fund codes 
REQUEST TO POST: 
11.  Public Works – Rural Addressing Analyst – Vacated by Bernadette Ortiz 
12.  Finance – Accountant Senior – Vacated by Stacie Allison 
13.  Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – Vacated 
by Chris Phillips 
14.  Public Works – Flood Control Technician – Vacated by John McCrory 
 
OCTOBER 20, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Robert Gould – Community Development – Director of Community 
Development – 12/31/15 – General Fund – DOH 09/04/06 
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Paul Curzon – Assessor’s Office –Mapping Technician – 11/02/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Susan Pontel 
3.  Donna Krah – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 10/26/15 – General 
(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees (.50) Funds – Replacing Danny McKeen 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
4.  Felicia Trembath – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public 
Health and Emergency Preparedness Planner – 10/26/15 – Bio Terrorism 
Program Fund – Replacing B. Todd Whitney 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Jessica Moul – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 10/27/15 – Health Service Fund  
6.  Wayne Morgan – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/07/15 – 
General Fund  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Susan Williams – From Globe Regional Justice Court – To School 
Superintendent’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Senior – To Administrative 
Assistant – 10/26/15 – General Fund – Replacing Natalie Lister 
OTHER ACTIONS: 



Page 13 of 15 

 

8.  Nancy Rutherford – Health and Emergency Services – Health Programs 
Manager – 10/19/15 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes  
REQUEST TO POST: 
9.  Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk – Vacated by Rose Holiday 
 
OCTOBER 27, 2015 
NEW HIRES: 
1.  Lauren Molzen – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – 
11/02/15 – Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Amanda Olvera  
2.  Richard Dwyer – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 10/26/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Joseph Williams 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3.  Adela Johnson – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 11/04/15 – 
General Fund 
4.  Heather Lutye – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 
11/18/15 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
5.  Jessica Palmer – Health and Emergency Services – From Animal 
Regulations Enforcement Officer – To Community Health Specialist – 11/02/15 
– From Rabies Control Fund – To Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund – 
Replacing Nancy Rutherford  
REQUEST TO POST: 
6.  Globe Regional Justice Court – Accounting Clerk Senior – Vacated by Susan 
Williams 
 
V.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of October 12, 2015, 
through October 16, 2015; October 19, 2015, through October 23, 2015; 
and, October 26, 2015, through October 30, 2015.  
 
W.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
October 27, 2015, November 3, 2015, November 10, 2015, and November 
17, 2015.  
 
October 27, 2015 
 
$1,839,076.83 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273177 
through 273330.   
 
November 3, 2015 
 
$201,820.75 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273331 
through 273426.  
 



Page 14 of 15 

 

November 10, 2015 
 
$2,064,988.97 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273427 
through 273569.  
 
November 17, 2015 
 
$140,789.75 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 273570 
through 273623.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action Items 5A – 5W excluding 
5H which was tabled. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
7.  At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager may 
present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on 
information presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.  
 
Item 8 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (Should the Board of Supervisors 
vote to go into executive session on any of the items listed below, no 
action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.)  
 
At 11:28 a.m. upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously voted to go into executive session. 
 



Page 15 of 15 

 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to 
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding TX 2013-000185 the 
SATR Holdings LLC v. Gila County and consider its position in the 
lawsuit; and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3)-(4).  If the Board does go into executive session, the County 
Attorney’s Office suggests that after adjourning from executive session, 
the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as 
directed in executive session. 
 
At 11:47 a.m. Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
instructed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as directed in executive 
session.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:48 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  



   
ARF-3235     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

11/03/15, 11/10/15, 11/17/15, and 11/24/15

Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.,

Human Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of November 3, 2015, November
10, 2015, November 17, 2015, and November 24, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
November 3, 2015, November 10, 2015, November 17, 2015, and
November 24, 2015.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
11/03/15 Human Resources Report
11/10/15 Human Resources Report
11/17/15 Human Resources Report
11/24/15 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐15 Feb‐15 Mar‐15 Apr‐15 May‐15 Jun‐15 Jul‐15 Aug‐15 Sep‐15 Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 126 8 18 7 12 11 20 19 7 9 8 7

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 98 9 9 8 9 2 8 13 10 13 5 12

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 23 3 2 2 4 0 4 1 1 2 3 1

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 58 6 4 4 4 3 3 8 6 13 4 3

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 78 2 2 10 5 8 8 6 11 9 8 9

OTHER ACTIONS 69 11 2 1 10 5 9 10 9 4 3 5

REQUEST TO POST 108 7 14 5 9 5 18 13 11 10 10 6

  Total Transactions 560 46 51 37 53 34 70 70 55 60 41 43 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 3, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Jason Fajardo – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 10/20/15 – General Fund – DOH 07/14/14 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Donald Hayes III – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/09/15 – General Fund – Replacing Marina 
Cohn 

3. Megan Dillon – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 11/09/15 – General Fund – Replacing Jessica 
Madrid 

4. David Tavares – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/09/15 – General Fund – Replacing Cynthia 
Reid 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Keith Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/20/15 – General Fund  
6. Amy Farley – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 1 – To Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 11/10/15 

– State Aid Enhancement Fund  
7. Beverly Valenzuela – Sheriff’s Office – Records Clerk (.48) – 10/06/15 – General Fund  
8. Gabriel Lagunas – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/01/15 – General Fund 
9. Dwight Payne – Sheriff’s Office – IT Support Specialist – 07/21/15 – General Fund 
10. Lowell Brown – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 02/10/15 – General Fund  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

11. John Garrett – From Community Development – To Health and Emergency Services – Environmental 
Engineer Manager – 11/16/15 – General Fund 

12. Svanhildur Jafestdottir – From Community Development – To Health and Emergency Services – 
Environmental Engineering Specialist – 11/16/15 – General Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

13. Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Jerry M. Moore 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

NEW HIRES: 

1. Jonathan Bearup – Superior Court – Deputy Court Administrator – 11/16/15 – General Fund –
Replacing Jonathan Bearup

2. Audrey Schmitt – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 11/30/15 – General Fund – Replacing Rhonda
Rolf

3. Stella Gore – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/16/15 – Immunization
Fund – Replacing Debra Blevins

4. Manuel Abeyta – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 11/20/15 –
Immunization(.95)/TB(.05) Funds – Replacing Ramona Scales

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

5. John Scott – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 11/27/15 – Public Works Fund
6. Arthur Epperson II – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 11/18/15 –

Public Works Fund

OTHER ACTIONS: 

7. Michael O’Driscoll – Health and Emergency Services – Director of Health and Emergency Services –
11/02/15 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes

8. Bethany Cheney – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Policy Analyst – 10/19/15 –
From Population Health Policy Initiative(.50)/Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Ed.(.50)
Funds – To Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Ed. Fund – Change in fund codes

9. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – Emergency Management/Public Health and
Emergency Preparedness Manager – 11/02/15 – Various Funds – Change in fund codes

REQUEST TO POST: 

10. Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Officer – Vacated by Jessica Palmer



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 17, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Evelyn Guevera – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/07/15 – 
CAP(.40)/GEST(.60) Funds – DOH 08/10/15 

2. Stephanie Dean – Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – 10/31/15 – Library 
District Fund – DOH 10/04/12 

3. Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 11/13/15 – General Fund – DOH 04/14/14 
4. Ramon Garcia – Probation – Chief Deputy Probation Officer – 11/30/15 - General(.80)/Adult Intensive 

Probation Supervision(.20) Funds – DOH 08/26/85 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Eric Dawson – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer(.48) – 11/23/15 - General Fund – Replacing 
Michael Lorka 

6. Roy Bruno – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 11/23/15 - General Fund – Replacing Emelle 
Silvers  

7. Kristin Hulbert – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 11/23/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Sally Denny 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Emily Leverance – Probation – Grant Project Assistant – 12/15/15 – Juvenile Evening/Weekend 
Resources Center Fund  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Marion R. Barajas – Public Works – From Building Maintenance Technician – To Building 
Maintenance Technician Senior – 11/23/15 - Facilities Management Fund – Replacing William 
McDaniel 

 
OTHER ACTIONS 
 

10. Ernest Salcido – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 11/24/15 – General Fund – Extend 
temporary employment an additional week 

11. Frank Gonzales - Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 01/05/16 – General Fund – Extend 
temporary employment an additional week 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
 

12. Community Development – Director of Community Development – Vacated by Robert Gould 
13. Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – Vacated by Stephanie Dean 
14. Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator Senior – Vacated by David Slaughter  

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 24, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Rebecca Guadiana – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 11/20/15 – General Fund 
– DOH 05/19/03 

2. Nichelle Ridenour – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/06/15 – Court Appointed 
Special Advocate(.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds – DOH 12/22/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Laura Real – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 11/30/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Linda Lemon 

4. Melanie Sabbatino-Tackett – Superior Court – Administrative Clerk Senior – 11/30/15 - Court 
Appointed Special Advocate(.50)/Court Improvement Project(.50) Funds – Replacing Nichelle Ridenour 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

5. Christine Lopez – Community Development – Temporary Administrative Clerk – 11/30/15 – General 
Fund 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – New position 
 
 



   
ARF-3483     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 12/01/2015  
Reporting
Period:

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; and November
20, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 11-6-15; 11-13-15; and 11-20-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of November 2, 2015, through
November 6, 2015; November 9, 2015, through November 13, 2015;
and, November 16, 2015, through November 20, 2015.

Attachments
Contracts Under $50K Report
Amendment No. 1-Elledge
Government Obligation Contract-KS StateBank
Maintenance Agreement-Konica Minolta
Professional Services Contract No. 102215-Caruso Turley Scott
Contract Agreement Form-Modular Solutions, Ltd.
Professional Services Contract No. 100915-Caruso Turley Scott
Service Agreement No. 102315-Quality Crane Services
OpenGov Intelligence Software Agreement
Service Agreement No. 111015-Speedie & Associates
ERS Fire Interface Module-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
Pawned Property Module-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
CAD Mapping-1 seat license-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
Contract Agreement for additional scope for redesign of foundation
plan



Warranty Plan-Goserco Inc.-Payson Sheriff's Office
Warranty Plan-Goserco Inc-Globe Sheriff's Office
Service Agreement No. 110515-Empire Southwest



  
Page 1 

 
  

 
COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
November 2, 2015 thru November 6, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

071415 
Samantha Sue Elledge 

 

 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 071415 

Samantha Sue Elledge, 
PLLC 

 

 
Increase 
original 
contract 

amount of 
$10,000 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$30,000.00 

 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-16 

 
11-3-15 

 
Option to renew for 2 
additional one-year 

periods 

 
Contractor provides Indigent 
Dependency legal services to the Gila 
County Superior Court. 

 
3348901 

KS StateBank  
 

 

 
Government Obligation 

Contract to purchase a new 
copier  

 

 

 
$3,889.80  

 

 
11-1-15 to 10-31-18 

 
11-3-15 

 
Expires 

 
Replace the non-working copier for the 
Juvenile Detention Center with a new 
Bizhub C-224e copier. 
 

 
Konica Minolta 

Business Solutions 

 

 
Service and Maintenance 
Agreement on Bizhub C-

224e copier 

 

 
$327.60/year + 

sales tax + 
$0.0502 per 
color copy  

 
11-1-15 to 10-31-18 

 
11-3-15 

 
Expires 

 
Service and maintenance agreement for 
new copier for the Juvenile Detention 
Center.  Maintenance includes all 
supplies (except paper), toner, parts, 
labor and service calls. 
 

 
102215 

Caruso Turley Scott, Inc.  
 

 

 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 102215 
Payson Courthouse-

Structural Review 
 

 

 
$6,350.00 

 
11-4-15 to 6-30-16 

 
11-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide structural 
engineering and drafting services, as 
required, to review opening up the South 
West section of the 1st floor space of the 
Payson Courthouse for a new courtroom. 
  
 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 

November 9, 2015 thru November 13, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

GSA Contract 
GS07F7199L 

Modular Solutions 

 

 
Authorization to utilize 

GSA Cooperative Contract 
for Prefabricated 

Structures and Outdoor 
Smoking Shelters 

 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$27,500.00 
 

 
11-9-15 to 12-31-15 

 
11-9-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide factory 
oversight, as required by the Office of 
Manufactured Homes (OMH) and shall 
prepare a complete stamped set of 
architectural recertification plans to be 
approved by OMH for the Copper Admin 
Building. 
  

 
100915 

Caruso Turley Scott, Inc.  
 

 

 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 100915 

Former NAPA Building-
Structural Review 

 

 

 
$2,700.00 

 
11-10-15 to 11-27-15 

 
11-10-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform a structural 
review of the building at 110 W. Main 
Street in Payson to identify any evidence 
of past or future structural problems. 
  
 

 
102315 

Quality Crane Services, 
Inc. 

 
Service Agreement No. 

102315 
Annual Crane Inspections 

 

 

 
$4,480.00 

 

 
11-10-15 to 11-9-16 

 
11-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one-year 
periods 

 
Contractor to perform annual  OSHA 
inspections of the mobile cranes 
mounted on the service trucks and the 
fixed cranes in the Payson and Globe 
shops. 
 

 
OpenGov, Inc. 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
022514-1 

Forensic Center Facility for 
Gila County Medical 

Examiner 
 

 

 
Increase 
original 

agreement of 
$4,900 by 

$3,650 for a 
new total 

agreement 
amount of 

$8,550. 
 

 
7-1-15 to 6-30-18 

 
11-10-15 

 
Automatically renews 

for three additional 
one-year periods 

 
OpenGov, Inc. provides proprietary web 
applications that make Gila County 
financial data available, through an 
online portal, for the purpose of 
Transparency.  Amendment #1 has been 
issued to change the Effective Date of the 
original contract and to place a cap on 
how many years the service will 
automatically renew. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
November 16, 2015 thru November 20, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

111015 
Speedie and Associates 

 
Service Agreement No. 

111015 
Geotechnical Investigation-

Copper Administration 
Building 

 

 

 
$4,950.00 

 

 
11-18-15 to 12-17-15 

 
11-16-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform a geotechnical 
investigation of the Copper 
Administration Building site for 
permitting and design purposes.   
  

 
QUO-07130-D7L8J0 

Spillman Technologies 

 
Quote and Purchase 

Addendum to Contract  
 

 

 
$8,424.00 

 

 
11-18-15 to 11-17-16 

 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office wishes to 
purchase Spillmans’ “ERS Fire Interface” 
software module> This is the link in 
Spillman software between the Sheriff’s 
Office and the various Fire Departments 
that the County provides Dispatch 
services to. The 1st year of maintenance, 
included in the price, covers all upgrades 
and live phone support services for the 
entire year. 
  

 
QUO-07032-V9Q8F7 

Spillman Technologies 

 

 
Quote and Purchase 

Addendum to Contract 
 

 

 
$11,519.00  

 

 
11-18-15 to 11-17-16 

 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office wishes to 
purchase Spillmans’ “Pawned Property” 
software module to reduce the amount of 
time it takes to enter pawn tickets.  It 
currently takes up to 30 minutes to enter 
one pawn ticket into three different 
programs.  The Sheriff’s Office receives 
an average of 600-700 pawn tickets a 
month.  With the upgraded software, 
each pawn ticket will only need to be 
entered once to be fully searchable and 
attached to the person who pawns an 
item.  The 1st year of maintenance 
included in the price, covers all upgrades 
and live phone support services for the 
entire year. 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 4 

 
  

 

November 16, 2015 thru November 20, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

QUO-08244-F1Y1Z5 
Spillman Technologies 

 

 
Quote and Purchase 

Addendum to Contract 
 

 

 
$23,625.00  

 

 
11-18-15 to 11-17-16 

 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Gila County Sheriff’s Office wishes to 
purchase Spillmans’ “CAD Mapping” 
software module. This module goes hand 
in hand with the Mobile Module already 
purchased by the Sheriff’s Office.  CAD 
Mapping will display calls and the Patrol 
units on a map, where both the 
Dispatchers and Patrol Deputies can see 
where the unit is.  The Sheriff’s Office 
already has the Geobase Mapping which 
is what CAD Mapping uses to display the 
information. The 1st year of maintenance, 
included in the price, covers all upgrades 
and live phone support services for the 
entire year. 

 
GSA Contract 
GS07F7199L 

Modular Solutions 

 

 
Authorization to utilize 

GSA Cooperative Contract 
for Prefabricated 

Structures and Outdoor 
Smoking Shelters 

 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$1,500.00 
 

 
11-9-15 to 12-31-15 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall provide a re-design of 
the foundation plan, based on 
information provided by Gila County to 
produce a complete stamped set of 
architectural recertification plans to be 
approved by OMH for the Copper Admin 
Building.  The cost of $1,500 will come 
out of a $5,000 contingency item which 
was added to the original agreement on 
11-9-15. 
  

 
Goserco, Inc. 

 

 

 
Extended Warranty Plan 

for Voice Logging Recorder 
 

 

 
$4,339.37 

 

 
1-1-16 to 12-31-16 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
Extended Warranty Plan for Voice 
Logging Recorder for the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office/Jail Control Center in 
Payson, AZ. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 5 

 
  

 
November 16, 2015 thru November 20, 2015 

 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Goserco, Inc. 
 

 

 
Extended Warranty Plan 

for Voice Logging Recorder 
 

 

 
$4,530.80 

 

 
1-1-16 to 12-31-16 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
Extended Warranty Plan for Voice 
Logging Recorder for the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Office/Jail Control Center in 
Globe, AZ. 
 

 
110515 

Empire Southwest, LLC 

 
Service Agreement No. 

110515 
Emergency Repair-

Generator for 911 Call 
Center 

 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$2,488.65 
 

 
11-18-15 to 12-17-15 

 
11-18-15 

 
Expires 

 
Due to the inconsistency of the generator 
powering up and running, it was 
necessary to have Empire Southwest 
perform testing on the generator located 
at the Sheriff’s Office 911 Dispatch 
Center.  Once the problem was identified, 
the repairs were made.  The generator is 
a vital piece of equipment for the 911 
Call Center in the event that their main 
source of power goes out. 
  

 








































































































































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - December 2015 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program
	Att1_Nomination Form_ D. Williams
	Att2_Nomination Form_ B. Cheney
	Att3_Nomination Form_ C. Cates
	Att4_Nomination Form_ T. Whitney
	Untitled

	 Item 2.B. - Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust Wellness Update Presentation 
	Att1_AZLGEBT 12-1-15
	 Item 3.A. - Public Sale for a portion of S. Marion Canyon (aka Miami Street) as shown on Official Map No. 25, Gila County Records, Gila County, AZ.
	Att1_Public Notice of Sale Acknowledgment 9-22-15
	Att2_Stemm Area Map
	Att3_Notice of Sale
	 Item 4.A. - Amended Zoning Ordinance No. 2015-04 - Re_  Accessory Dwelling Units
	Att1_Final Ordinance 2015-04
	Att2_Red-lined Ordinance 2015-04
	Att3_Staff Report
	 Item 4.B. - Official Canvass of the November 3, 2015, Election for Miami Unified School District No. 40
	Att1_Miami Unified School District No. 40 Election Results
	Att2_Agenda 11-17-15
	MIAMI AREA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 40
	Miami High School Library
	AGENDA


	Att3_ARS 16-642
	Att4_ARS 15-493
	Att5_Letter to Miami Area School District No. 40 
	 Item 4.C. - Application and Citizens' Petition to begin the process to abandon a portion of Blake, Coplen, and Hobart Streets in Arlington Heights
	Att1_Map
	Att2_Aerial
	Att3_Plat
	Att4_Application and Petition
	 Item 4.D. - Purchase requisition to acquire right-of-way needed for a bridge over Tonto Creek in Tonto Basin
	 Item 4.E. - Appointment or Reappointment of BOS members to Boards, Committees and Organizations for 2016
	 Item 5.A. - Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS16-098369) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_ADHS16-098369 Amendment 1
	Att2_ADHS15-094962 Amendment 1
	Att3_Original Contract ADHS15-094962
	Att4_Approval as to Form
	 Item 5.B. - Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County Community Services
	Att1_Memorandum of Agreement with Arizona Community Action Association
	 Item 5.C. - Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board
	Att1_Gila County Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board Member List
	 Item 5.D. - October 2015
	Att1_Globe Justice Court Monthly Report for October 2015
	 Item 5.E. - October 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for October 2015
	 Item 5.F. - October 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Superior Court October 2015
	 Item 5.G. - October 2015
	Att1_October 2015
	SKMBT_C45215110409310.pdf
	jp0404 october15

	 Item 5.H. - November 17, 2015
	Att1_11-17-15 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 5.I. - 11_03_15, 11_10_15, 11_17_15, and 11_24_15
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_11_03_15 Human Resources Report
	Att3_11_10_15 Human Resources Report
	Att4_11_17_15 Human Resources Report
	Att5_11_24_15 Human Resources Report
	 Item 5.J. - November 6, 2015_ November 13, 2015_ and November 20, 2015
	Att1_Contracts Under $50K Report
	Att2_Amendment No. 1-Elledge
	Att3_Government Obligation Contract-KS StateBank
	Att4_Maintenance Agreement-Konica Minolta
	Att5_Professional Services Contract No. 102215-Caruso Turley Scott
	Att6_Contract Agreement Form-Modular Solutions, Ltd.
	Att7_Professional Services Contract No. 100915-Caruso Turley Scott
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 102315-Quality Crane Services
	Att9_OpenGov Intelligence Software Agreement
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 111015-Speedie and Associates
	Att11_ERS Fire Interface Module-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
	Att12_Pawned Property Module-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
	Att13_CAD Mapping-1 seat license-Spillman Technologies, Inc.
	Att14_Contract Agreement for additional scope for redesign of foundation plan
	Att15_Warranty Plan-Goserco Inc.-Payson Sheriff's Office
	Att16_Warranty Plan-Goserco Inc-Globe Sheriff's Office
	Att17_Service Agreement No. 110515-Empire Southwest

